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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
Registered Office: Royal Oaks, Embassy GolfLinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bangalore - 560 071, Karnataka, India. 
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E: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com |  W: https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ | CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

June 14, 2024 

To, 
The Corporate Relations Department, 
Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Limited, 25th Floor, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai 400001 

Re: Scrip Code 974141 (NCDs) 

ISIN: INE466P07010 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Subject: Intimation of the Schedule of Thirty-Second Annual General Meeting of the Company and 
submission of Notice and Annual Report thereon. 

Pursuant to Regulation 50(2) and 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we wish to inform you that the Thirty Second Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company shall be held on Saturday, June 22, 2024, at 1600 Hrs IST at 
Symphony, WeWork Unit No. 102, Embassy One, Pinnacle, Ground Floor, No. 8, Bellary Road, Dena Bank 
Colony, Ganganagar, Bengaluru – 560032, Karnataka. 

Copy of the Notice of the Thirty Second AGM of the Company is enclosed as Appendix I and copy of the 
Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, is enclosed as Appendix II. 

The said documents are also being placed at our website at https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/. 

Kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking you 

For and on behalf of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Gautham Nambiar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
F12376 

Encl: A/a 

https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/
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SHORTER NOTICE OF THE THIRTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Second Annual General Meeting of the Members of Vikas Telecom 
Private Limited (“Company”) will be held at shorter notice on Saturday, June 22, 2024, at 1600 Hrs IST at 
Symphony, WeWork Unit No. 102, Embassy One, Pinnacle, Ground Floor, No. 8, Bellary Road, Dena Bank 
Colony, Ganganagar, Bengaluru – 560032, Karnataka, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2024, and note the Report of the Auditors and the Report of the Board of Directors
thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

2. To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March
31, 2025.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration, as
approved by the Board of Directors and set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice, to
be paid to M/s. GSR & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 000069), the Cost Auditors
appointed by the Board of Directors, to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial
Year ending March 31, 2025, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT each of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary, be and
are hereby severally authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 23, 2024 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For and on behalf of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Sd/- 

Gautham Nambiar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

F12376 

Address: Royal Oaks, Embassy Golflinks Business 
      Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, 

 Bengaluru – 560071, Karnataka 

APPENDIX I

mailto:secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/


 

Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
Registered Office: Royal Oaks, Embassy GolfLinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bangalore - 560 071, Karnataka, India. 
Tel: +91 80 4722 2222 | F: +91 80 4722 2223  
E: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com |  W: https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ | CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

NOTES: 

1. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the Meeting are 
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution to the Company, authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.  

2. For convenience of the Members and for proper conduct of the Meeting, entry to the place of Meeting 
will be regulated by the attendance slip, which is annexed to the Notice. Members are requested to 
sign at the place provided on the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue. 

3. Members are requested to write their Client ID and Depository Participant ID on the attendance slip 
and bring their attendance slip to the venue of the Meeting. 

4. All relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for inspection, during 
normal business hours on any working day, at the Registered Office of the Company upto and including 
the date of the Meeting. 

5. Members may address their queries / communications, if any, at least 48 hours before the time 
appointed for the meeting to facilitate the answering thereto at secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com. 

6. A route map and prominent landmark for easy location to the venue of the Meeting is attached to this 
Notice. 

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act 
read with Rules made thereunder will be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting. 

8. Members are requested to note the following contact details for addressing queries/ grievances, if any: 

Mr. Gautham Nambiar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 
Royal Oaks, Embassy Golflinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bengaluru – 560071, 
Karnataka, India  
T:  +91 80 4722 2222 
Email id: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com. 
 

9. The Members desiring to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice are 
required to send request on the Company’s email Id: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com. An extract 
of such documents would be sent to the Members on their registered email address, upon request. 

mailto:secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 2: 

The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, sets out all 
material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No. 5 of the accompanying Notice: 

To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 23, 2024, had appointed M/s GSR & Associates, Cost 
Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 000069), having their office at 80/1, 3rd Block, Jayalakshmipuram, Mysuru – 
570012, as “Cost Auditors” of the Company to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the 
Financial Year ending March 31, 2025. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors shall be ratified by 
the Members of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the Members is requested by passing an Ordinary 
Resolution as set out at Item No. 2 of this Notice to ratify the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors, for the 
audit of cost records of the Company, for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 at a remuneration of 
₹75,000/- only (Indian Rupees Seventy Five Thousand only) (excluding GST and out of pocket expenses at 
actuals). 

Relevant documents referred in respect of the said item are available for inspection without any fee by the 
Members at the venue of the meeting during normal business hours on any working day upto and till the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 

No Director of the Company and/or their relatives, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in Item No.2 of this Notice for approval of 
Members as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 23, 2024 
 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For and on behalf of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

 
 

 Sd/- 

Gautham Nambiar 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

F12376 
 

Address: Royal Oaks, Embassy Golflinks Business    
      Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road,   

                            Bengaluru – 560071, Karnataka 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the place of the meeting) 

I/we hereby record my/our presence at the Thirty-second Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on 
Saturday, June 22, 2024, at 1600 Hrs IST at Symphony, WeWork Unit No. 102, Embassy One, Pinnacle, 
Ground Floor, No. 8, Bellary Road, Dena Bank Colony, Ganganagar, Bengaluru – 560032, Karnataka. 

Folio No._____________                                              Client ID No.________________ 

Name of the Shareholder________________________________________________________________ 

Address______________________________________________________________________________ 

No. of shares held_________________ 

 

 

     Signature of the Shareholder(s) 
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF THE THIRTY- SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

OF 

VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED 

Venue: Symphony, WeWork Unit No. 102, Embassy One, Pinnacle, Ground Floor, No. 8, Bellary Road, Dena 
Bank Colony, Ganganagar, Bengaluru – 560032, Karnataka. 

Landmark: Next to HMT Bhavan 
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDE T AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

12th Floor 
"US City" Canberra Block 
No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road 
Bengaluru • 560 001, India 

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Yikas Telecom Private Limited 
(" the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 3 I, 2024, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, 
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 20 I 3. as 
amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 3 I, 2024. its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143( I 0) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the 'Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics ' 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31 , 2024. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, 
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have dete1mined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor·s responsibilities for the audit of 
the Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly. 
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including 
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying Ind AS financial statements. 

S.R Bathbo, & Associates LLP, a Limited L1ablllty Pdrtnersh1p with LLP Ident ity No f,AB·421?5 
Regd Ol!lce 22. Camac Street. Block ·e, 3rd Floor Kolkata 700 O I 6 
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Related party transactions and disclosures 
(as described in note 41 of the Ind AS financial statements) 

The Company has undertaken 
transactions with its related parties in the 
normal course of business and at ann 's 
length. These include loans taken and 
related interest expense etc. from related 
parties. 

We identified the recording of all 
possible related party transactions and its 
disclosure as set out in respective notes to 
the Ind AS financial statements as a key 
audit matter due to the significance of 
related party transactions and regulatory 
compliances. 

Other Information 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

- Obtained, and read the Company' s policies, processes 
and procedures in respect of identifying related parties, 
evaluation ofann ' s length , obtaining approval , recording 
and disclosure of related party transactions. 

- We tested, on a sample basis, related party transactions 
with the underlying contracts and other supporting 
documents for appropriate authorization and approval for 
such transactions. 

- We read minutes of board meetings in connection with 
transactions with related parties effected during the year 
and Company' s assessment of related party transactions 
being in the ordinary course of business at ann ' s length. 

- Assessed the related party disclosures in the Ind AS 
financial statements. 

The Company' s Board of Directors is responsible for the other infonnation. The other information 
comprises the infonnation included in the Director's report, but does not include the Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor' s repo1t thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and we do not 
express any fo1m of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfo1med, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other infonnation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard . 

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial perfonnance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company' s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company ' s financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's rep011 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company ' s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation . 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31 , 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor' s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pub I ic interest benefits 
of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor' s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order'·), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repo1i to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

( d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 , as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31 , 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in ''Annexure 2" to this report; 

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company for the year ended March 31 , 2024; 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor' s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS financial statements; 

11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company; 

1v. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries'"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bet ief, , no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities 
(" 'Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Company shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(" Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 
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v1. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software (refer note 48 to the Ind AS financial statements). Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W /E300004 

Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 24209567BKCZQE3218 

Place of Signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date: April 23 , 2024 



S.R. BATL/80/ & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING "REPORT ON 
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN 
DATE 

Re: Vikas Telecom Private Limited ("the Company" ) 

In tenns of the infonnation and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, we state that: 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) All property, plant and equipment and investment properties were physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in note 4A & 5 to the Ind AS financial 
statements included in property, plant and equipment and investment properties are held in the 
name of the Company. Immovable properties whose title deeds have been pledged with Catalyst 
Trustee are not available with the Company. The same has been independently confirmed by 
the Catalyst Trusteeship Limited. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the 
year ended March 3 I, 2024. 

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made 
thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company' s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the 
requirement to repor1 on clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in 
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis 
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(iii) (a) During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the 
nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. During 
the year, the Company has stood guarantee and provided security as detailed in the table below: 

Amount in Rs million 
Particulars Security and Guarantee Security 
Aggregate amount granted/provided during 
the year 
- Holding Entity 10,000 -
- Others (Fellow Subsidiary) - 4,500 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 
in respect of above case 
- Holding Entity 10,000 -
- Others (Fe llow Subsidiary) - 4,500 

(b) During the year ended March 3 I, 2024, guarantees provided and security given and the terms 
and conditions of the guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Further, 
during the year, the Company has not made investments, granted loans or advances in the nature 
of loans to Compan ies, fin11S, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other pa11ies. 

( c) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(iii) (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) Provisions of section I 85 and I 86 of the Companies Act 20 I 3 in respect of guarantees and 
securities given have been complied with by the Company, as applicable. There are no loans 
and investments given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and I 86 of the Companies 
Act 2013 are applicable. 

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act 
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148( I) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 , related to construction of buildings/ structures, activity of 
maintenance of commercial property and other related activities and are of the opinion that 
prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

(v ii) a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues 
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit 
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. The provisions relating to provident fund and employee' s state insurance are 
not applicable to the Company. 
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(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, provident fund and other statutory dues which 
have not been deposited by the Company on account of any disputes, except for the following: 

Name of the Nature of the dues Amount Period to Forum where the 
statute (Rs. in which the dispute is pending 

million) amount relates 

Income tax Unexplained Cash 1.62* AY 2004-05 ITAT, Delhi 
Act, 1961 Credit u/s 68 
Income tax Section 14A 10.01 AY 2018-19 Commissioner of 
Act, 1961 disallowance and Income tax 

unexplained (Appeals) 
expenditure u/s 69C 

Customs Act, Incorrect availment 4.31 FY 2015- 16 Hon ' ble High 
1962 of custom duty Court of Karnataka 

exemption 
Income tax Disallowance against 15 .93 AY 2019-20 Assessing Officer 
Act, 1961 unexplained 

expenditure u/s 69C 

Income tax TDS Mismatch as 13.91 * AY 2022-23 Assessing Officer 
Act, 1961 per Books and 26 AS 

and Disallowance 
against unexplained 
expenditure u/s 69C 

* the disputed dues have been adjusted against the refunds received for different assessment 
years subsequently. 

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the 
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised 
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the 
requirement to repor1 on clause 3(ix)(e) and (t) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /further 
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or 
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the 
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
has been filed by cost auditor, secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under 
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 
3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period 
under audit have been considered by us. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 
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(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report 
on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly 
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 46 to the Ind AS financial statements, 
ageing and expected dates ofrealization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be 
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance 
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed 
in note 40 to the Ind AS financial statements. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred 
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies 
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the Ind AS financial statements . 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 24209567BKCZQE3218 

Place of signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date: April 23 , 2024 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMTED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Yikas 
Telecom Private Limited ('"the Company .. ) as of March 31 , 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company ' s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial repo1ting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (" ICAI"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to the Company ' s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"') 
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) ofthe Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by !CAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor' s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company ' s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail , accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected . Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2024, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Adarsh Ranka 
Partner 
Membership Number: 209567 

UDIN: 242095678KCZQE32 l 8 

Place of signature: Bengaluru, India 
Date: April 23 , 2024 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA l 992PTC083998 
Balance Sheet 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Property , plant and equipment 
Capital work-in-progress 
Investm ent properties 
Investment properties under development 
Intangible assets 
Financial assets 

- Other financial assets 
Deferred tax asset (net) 
Non-current tax assets 
Other non-current assets 

Tota l non-current assets 
Current assets 

Financial assets 
- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equi valents 
- Other fi nancial assets 

Other current assets 
Tota l current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Eq uity 

Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Tota l equity 
Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
- Borrowings 
- Other financi al liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Other non-current liabil ities 

Tota l non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Financia l liabi lities 
- Borrowings 
- Trade payables 

- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

- Other financial liabil ities 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Total equity and liabi lities 

Material accounting policies 

Note 

4 A 
4 B 

5 
6 
7 

8 
9 

10 
II 

12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
2 1 

22 
23 

24 
25 

As at 
3 I March 2024 

17 03 
1,485.30 

23 ,00 1.74 
6,720.80 
1,533.33 

1,095.00 

6 1.34 
708.06 

34,622,60 

31.47 
0.06 

403.15 
243.92 
678,60 

35 301.20 

65 . 15 
{2,0 14 92) 
(1,949.77) 

32,345.78 
462.96 

53. 17 
33.53 

32,895.44 

140.46 

18.25 
35.76 

3,820.80 
340.26 

4,355.53 

35 301.20 

The accom panying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

for S R Batliboi & Ass 
Charrered Account s 
!CAI Firm's ration No: l01 049W/E300004 

Membership No.: 209567 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 23 April 2024 

Page I 

fo r and on behal fof the Board of Directors of 

ikGeleco: Private Li 

7 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 23 April 2024 

DIN 0848 1898 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date: 23 April 2024 

As at 
31 March 2023 

17.45 
602.16 

23 ,023.78 
2,987.16 
2,453.33 

1, 11 7.34 
279.13 
2 18.75 
958.46 

31,657,56 

3205 
130.68 
443.41 
!08.90 
715,04 

32 372.60 

65 .15 
(2,8 1128) 
(2,746.13) 

30, 135.52 
9 19.37 

97.41 
31,152.30 

122.59 

15.47 

l 12.66 
3,350.50 

365.21 
3,966.43 

32 372.60 

Gautham ambiar 
Company Secretary 
Membership No: Fl 2376 
Place: Bengaluru 

Date : 23 April 2024 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

Interest income 
Other income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Operati ng and maintenance expenses 
Employee benefit expense 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortization and tax 
Depreciation expense 
Amortization expense 
Finance costs 

Profit before tax 

Tax expenses: 
Current tax 
Deferred tax charge 

Tax expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earning per equity share: 
Equity shares of par value of Rs. 10 each 
- Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) 

Material accounting policies 

Note 

26 
27 
28 

29 
30 
3 1 

32 
32 
33 

44 

34 

3 

For the yea r ended 
31 March 2024 

6,975.95 
37.69 
93.86 

7,107.50 

76 1.90 

401.98 
1,163.88 

5,943,62 
1,034.97 

920.00 
2,753.71 

1,234.94 

106.27 
332.31 
438.58 

796.36 

796.36 

122.23 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financ ial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

for S R Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm's Regis 10n No: l0 1049W/E300004 

Membership No.: 209567 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date 23 April 2024 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

Page 2 

DIN: 0848 1898 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

6,804.69 
281.51 

13.42 
7,099.62 

791.06 
1.0 1 

380.84 
1,172.91 

5,926.71 
934.75 

1,0 14.1 8 
3,339.35 

638.43 

64.00 
318.63 
382.63 

255.80 

255.80 

39.26 

;!; 
Ga utham Nambiar 
Company Secretary 
Membership No: F l2376 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
C IN: U64202 KA I 992PTC083998 

Statement of Cash Flow 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 
Depreciation expense 

Amortisation expense 

Finance costs (net) 

Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Investment Properties (net) 
Profi t on sale of mutual funds 
Liabilities no longer required wri tten bac k 
Interest income 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Working capital adjustments 
Changes in: 
Trade receivables 
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 
Other assets (current and non-current) 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) 
Other liabiliti es (current and non-current) 

Cash generated from operating activities before taxes 
Taxes refund received (net) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Payment for purchase of Investment Properties and Property , plant and 
equipment and Intangibles including Capital work-in-progress and 
Investment property under development 

Loans repaid by related parties 
(Investment In ) / Redemption of deposits wi th banks (including lien accounts) (net) 
Redemption in mutual funds (net) 
Interest received 
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayments of borrowings 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Interest paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash eq uivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) 
Balances wi th banks 

- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 

Material accounting policies (refer note 3) 

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1,234.94 

1,034.97 

920.00 

2,753.71 

(2441 ) 
(9 07) 

(37 69) 
5,872.45 

0.58 
90.74 

( 129.23) 
(65 05) 

(259.26) 
(888 1) 

5,421.42 
51.12 

5,472.54 

(4,676 27) 

(231 0) 
24.41 
32.66 

(4,642.30) 

(33, 129.85) 
35,335.79 
(3, 166.80) 

(960.86) 

( 130 62) 
130.68 

0.06 

0.06 
0.06 

Chartered Account 
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

ICAI Firm's • !ration No: 10 !049W/E300004 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

Page 3 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

For the yea r ended 
31 March 2023 

638.43 

93-l .75 

1,0 1-l .18 

3,339.35 

0.0 1 
(6 89) 
(343) 

(2815 1) 
5,634.89 

(8.30) 
940.5 1 
(23.63) 

51 51 
26.11 

(20.53 ) 
6,600.56 

134.62 
6,735.18 

(2,269.05) 

2,500.00 
44.2 1 

6.89 
281. 13 
563.18 

(23,989.27) 
20,079.95 
(3 ,403.83 ) 

(7,313.15) 

( 14 79) 
145.47 
130.68 

130.68 

130.68 

✓ 
~ J// 
Ga~th/ m Nambiar 
Company Secretary 
Membership No F12376 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(a ll amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity share capital* 

Particulars 
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued-;siibscribed and fully paid 
Balance as at I April 2022 
Add : Issued during the year 
Balance as at 3 I March 2023 

Balance as at I April 2023 
Add: lssu~cl duriru: !ill:...l:.ear 
Balance as at 31 Ma arch 

B. Other Equity•• 

Balance as at I April 2022 
Additions during the year 
Profit forthe year 

Particulars 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserves 
Other com_p_rehensive income 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 

Balance as at I April 2023 
Additions during tl1e year 
Profit for the year 
Transfer to debenture redemption reserves 
Other comprehensive income 
Balance as at 31 M.u-ru 2024 
•• Also ref emote 17 

Material accounting policies (refer note 3) 

General reserve 

50.00 

50,00 

50.00 

50.00 

The accompanying notes referred 10 above fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

for SR Batliboi & Associates LLP 

Membership No.: 209567 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

Equity 
component of 
Compulsorily 

convertible 
debentures 

2,152.59 

2,152.59 

2,152.59 

2,152.59 

Page 4 

Reserves and Surelus 
Equity Retained Debenture 

component of earnings redemption 
Optionally reserves 
convertible 
debentures 

1,575.09 (11.60) 
244.20 

255.80 
(244 20) 

1,575.09 244.20 

1,575.09 244.20 
250.80 

796.36 
(250 80) 

1,575.09 545,56 495.00 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of s::· ,,;:·" um;«, n 1/ 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

~ . 
JJ,rector 
DIN: 0848 1898 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

No. of Shares 

6,5 15,036 

6,515,036 

6,515 ,036 

6,5 15,036 

Capital reserve 

(6,833.16) 

,6,833.16) 

(6,833.16) 

(6,833.16) 

Amount 

65. 15 

65.15 

65.15 

65.15 

Total 

(3,067.08) 
244.20 
255.80 

(244 20) 

(2,811.28) 

(2,811.28) 
250.80 
796.36 

(250 80) 

(2,014.92) 

' 

."IJ--- l 
I • 

Ga utham Nambiar 
( 'ompany Sec.:retar_v 
Membership No: F 12376 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 Apri l 2024 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202 KA I 992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions w1less otherwise stated) 

I Company background 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited (''VTPL" or '·the Company") was incorporated on 29 June 1992 having registered office at Royal Oaks, 
Embassy Golflinks Business Park Off lntennediate Ring Road. Bengaluru-56007 1. The Company has constructed office buildings fanni ng IT 

SEZ and Non-S EZ parks in Bangalore. The operati ons of the Company comprise of real estate developments, leasing of commerc ial real 
estate and maintenance of the buildings. The Company's debt securities are listed on recognised stock exchange. 

2 Basis of preparation 
Statement of co mpliance to Ind AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ( Ind AS ) as defined in Rule 2( I )(a) of the 
Companies (Indian Account ing Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended, prescribed under Secti on 133 of the Companies Act, 20 13 (' the Act'), 
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles (as amended from time to time ) generally accepted in Indi a, and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. The financi al statements were approved fo r issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 23 April 2024. 

N£.rw and amende,I standarlis 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. except for items discl osed below: 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has noti fied Companies (Indian Accounting Standard ) Amendment Rules 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to 
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 0 1 April 2023. 

Ind AS I, Presentation of Financial Statements 

An entity shall disclose material accounting policy information. Accounting policy infonnation is material if, when considered together with 
other infonnation included in an entity 's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 

general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements. 
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued ) 
Ind AS 8, Accounting policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

Definition of ' change in account estimate' has been replaced by revised definition of ·accounting estimate' As per revised definition, 
accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty . An entity develops an 

accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of 

judgements or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable information. 

An entity may need to change an accounting estimate if changes occur in the circwnstances on which the accounting estimate was based or as 

a result of new infonnation, new developments or more experience. By its nature. a change in an accounting estimate does not relate to prior 
periods and is not the correction of an error. 

Deferred tax related to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities 

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes. exempt an enti ty from recognising a deferred tax asset or liabili ty in particular circumstances. Despite this 
exemption. an entity shall recognise a deferred tax asset- to the e.xtent that it is probable that taxable profit wi ll be avai lable against which the 
deductible temporary difference can be utili sed- and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated 
with 

(i) ri ght-of-use assets and lease liabilities: and 
There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the year ended 31 March 2024, but either the same 
are not relevant or do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. llie Company has not early adopted any standard, 
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effecti ve. 

3 Material accounting policies 
Thi s note provides a li st oftl1e material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwi se stated. 

3.01 Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company ' s functiona l currency and the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. All financia l infonnation presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to nearest 
million. except shares and per share data. 

3.02 Basis of measurement 
The fi nancial statements are prepared on tl1e historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 
values (refer accounting policies regarding financial instrwnent). 

3.03 Use of judgements and estimates 
The preparation of Financial Statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS ) requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect tl1e reported amounts of assets, liabilities. income and expenses. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are reco1,'nised in the period in 
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

Infonnation about crit ical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most sign ificant effect on the amounts reCO!,'llised in the 
Financial Statements is included in the fo ll owing notes: 
i) Classi ficati on of lease arrangements as finance lease or operating lease - Note 3.13 
ii ) Classification of assets as investment properties or as property. plant and equipment - Notes 3.06 and 3.07 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: 64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.03 Use of judgements and estimates (continued) 

Assumptions and estimations uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimati on uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment to the financial 

statements are included in tl1e following notes: 

i) Note 3.06 & 3.07 : Useful lives of Investment property and Property, Plant and Equipment. 

ii ) Note 3. 10 . Valuation of financial instruments. 

iii ) Note 3. 18: Recognition of deferred tax asset on carried forward losses and recognition of minimum alternate tax credit: availability of 
future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used . 

iv) Note 5. Note 6 and Note 3. IO as regards determination of fair value of investment properties including investment properties under 
development and impairment of non-financial assets being investment properties including investment properties under development and 
property plant and equipment. 

3.04 Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset ts treated as currem when II 1s: 

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nomial operating cycle; 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twel ve months after the reporting 

All other assets are classified as non-current . 

A /iah,l,~v is currel/1 when: 

- It is expected to be sett led in normal operating cycle; 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equi valents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

3.05 Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for botl1 financial and non-financial 
assets and liabi lities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the preswnption that the transact ion to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabili ty. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be access ible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the asswnptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anotl1er market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques tliat are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffic ient data are avai lable to measure fair 
val ue, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair val ues. The Company engages with external 
valuers for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets. 

While measuring tl1e fair value of an asset or liability. the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised 
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as foll ows. 

Level I : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I tliat are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i .e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data(unobservable inputs ). 

When measuring tlie fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to 
measure tl1e fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have 
OCC' IITTf"fi 

.,,.,.---: 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.06 Investment properties 
Property that is held for Jong- tenn rental yields or for capital appreciation or both is classified as in vestment properties. Investment properties 
is measured initially at its cost. including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is 
capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable tliat future economic benefits associated with the expenditure wi ll fl ow to 
the Company and the cost oftl1e item can be measured reliably . The cost of the assets not ready for their intended use before such date. are 
disclosed as investment properties under development. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an 
invesnnent properties is replaced, the carrying amount of such replaced invesnnent property is derecogni sed. 

Investment properties are depreciated on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. However. where the management' s estimate 

of the remaining useful life oftl1 e assets on a review subsequent to the time of acqui sition is different, then depreciation is provided over the 
remaini ng useful life based on the revised useful li fe. The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 

Pursuant to this policy. Management's estimates of useful life of the following major assets under straight-line method are as follows: 
Asset cate11:orv Estimated useful life (in years) 
Buildings 3-60 years 
Plant and Machinery 20-35 years 
Furniture and Fixtures 10-15 years 
Electrical Equipment 5-10 years 
Vehicle 5 years 
Leasehold land 30 - 99 years based on tl1e lease period 
Management's estimate of useful ltfe 1s m lme with those prescnbed under Schedule II to the Companies Act. 20 13. Further, where the useful 
life of assets is di fferent from the useful li ves as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. the Company has 
obtained a technical evaluation that best represent the period over which the Company expects to use these assets. 
Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carry ing amount of the respective 
invesbnent property and are amortized over the lease tenn on the same basis as the lease income. 

On transition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all lnvesnnent properties 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of lnvesnnent properties 
Pro-rata depreciation is provided on properties purchased or sold during tl1e year. 

Investment properties acquired on Business Combination is depreciated over the remaining useful li fe from the date of acquisi tion as certified 
by the technical valuer. 

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impainnent losses. if any. 

Investment properties are derecogni sed either when they have been di sposed of or when they are pennanently withdrawn from use and no 

future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net di sposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In detennining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of 
lnvesttnent properties the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component. non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any). 
Note: Plant and machinery, furniture and fi xtures and electrical equipment which are physically attached to the building are considered as part 
of the invesnnent properties. 

3.07 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. The cost of property. plant and 
equipment includes freight , duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets. 1l1e 
cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Property, plant and equipment are subsequently 
measured at cost net of accumulated depreciat ion and accumulated impainnent losses, if any. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful li ves of each component of an item of property. plant and 
equipment as follows: 

Asset category Estimated useful life 
(in years) 

Computers 3 years 
When parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are treated as separate components and depreciated over their 
respective estimated useful lives. 

The residual values, useful lives and metl1ods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. 
Pro-rata depreciation is provided on all fixed assets purchased or sold dttring the year. 
Property, plant & equipment are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same to the buyer. Further the entity also derecognises 
property, plant & equipment when they are pennanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of tl1e asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of de­
recognition. 
On transition to Ind AS (i .e. April 0 1, 20 16), tl1e Company has elected to continue with tl1e carrying value of all property plant and equipment 
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment . 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: UM202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.07 Property, plant and eq uipment and intangible assets (continued) 
Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are recorded at their acquisition cost. Following initial recognition, intan!,,jble assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impainnent losses. 

Cost of an item of intan gible assets compri ses its purchase price. including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting 
trade discounts and rebates, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that tl1e future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will fl ow to the 
Company. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 

prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses ari sing from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net di sposal proceeds and tl1e 
carrying amount oftl1e asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is derecognized. 

Right to use trademark: TI1e earnings potential of trade name/ trademark can at times be substantial. A trademark is recognized on a reporting 
Company·s balance sheet as an intangible asset separate from goodwill because it satisfies either of the following two tests: 

-It arises from legal rights (a trademark is essentially a bundle of rights ) 

-It is capable of being sold, transferred, and licensed separately from other assets of the acquiring company. 

CAM service rights are contract-based intangible assets, which represent the value of contractual rights that ari se from contractual 
arrangements. An entity establi shes relati onships with its customers through certain contracts, these customer relationships arise from 
contractual rights. CAM service rights are recognised at their fair value as at the date of acquisition, these are subsequently amortised on a 
straight-line basis. over their estimated contractual lives. 

Amortization 

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using 
the straight line method, and is included in depreciation and amortization in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Pro-rata amortizati on is provided on intangible assets purchased or sold during the year. 

The estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets are as follows: 
Class of asset 

Software 
Right to use brand 
CAM Service Rights 

Management estimate 
of useful life (years) 

3 years 
5 years 
5 years 

Based on technical evaluation, the Company believes that the useful lives, as given above, best represent the period over which the Company 
expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II 
of the Companies Act 20 13. 

3.08 Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whetl1er there is an indication that a non-fin ancial asset other than inventories and deferred tax 
assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impainnent testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 

asset's recoverable amount. 

An impainnent loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generatin g unit (CGU) 
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to tl1e CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the otl1er assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis. A CGU is tl1e 
smallest identifiable asset group tliat generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. unless it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity . 

An asset' s recoverable amount is tl1e higher of an asset' s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in 
use, tl1e estimated future cash fl ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discowlt rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and tl1e risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal , recent market transactions are 
taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of otl1er assets or CGU. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer 
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to detennine the recoverable amount. An impainnent 
loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.09 Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in forei!,'11 currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreib'll currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the 
reponing date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the fun ctional 
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was detennined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities tliat are measured based on hi storical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange tran sactions settled and from translat ions during the year are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss of the year except exchange differences arising from the translati on of the items which are recob'llised in Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

3.10 Financial instruments 
i. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other fi nancial assets and financial liabilities 
are initially recognised when the Company becomes a parry to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A fi nancial asset or fin ancial li abili ty is initially measured at fair value (except for trade recei vables which are initi ally measured at transaction 
price) plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL ), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisiti on or 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 
Fmanc,al assets 

On initial recognition. a financial asset is classi fied as measured at 
- amorti zed cost: 

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC I) - debt invesbnent; 
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI ) - equity investment ; or 
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL ). 

Financial assets are not reclassifi ed subsequent to their initial recognition. except if and in the peri od the Company changes its business model 
for managing financial assets. 

A financi al asset is measured at amonized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash fl ows; and 

- tl1e contractual terms of the financial asset give ri se on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
A debt invesbnent is measured at FVOC I ifit meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose obj ective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash fl ows and selling financi al assets; 
- tl1e contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fl ows that are solely payments of the principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. 
On initial recognition of an equi ty investment tliat is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes 
in the investment ' s fair value in OC I (designated as FVOCI - equi ty investment ). This election is made on an in vesbnent-by-in veshnent 

All financial assets not classifi ed as measured at amonized cost or FVOC I as described above are measured at FVTPL: l11is includes all 
derivati ve financial assets. On initial recognition. the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 

requirements to be meas ured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwi se arise. 

Financial assets: Businel·s model assessment 
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a fi nancial asset is held at a port folio level because thi s 
best reflects the way tl1e business is managed and in formation is provided to management. The in fonn ation considered includes: 

- the stated policies and objectives for the pon folio and the operation o f those policies in practice. These include whether management's 
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate pro fil e, matching the duration of the financial 

assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash fl ows tl1rough the sal e of the assets; 

- how the perfonnance of the ponfolio is evaluated and reponed to the Company·s management ; 

- tl1e ri sks that affect the performance of the business model (and the fin ancial assets held within that business model) and how those ri sks 
are managed; 

- how managers of the business are compensated - e. g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the 

contractual cash fl ows collected and ; 

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sal es and expectations about future sales 

activity . 

Transfers of financial assets to third parries in transactions that do not quali fy for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, 
consistent with the Company 's continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose perfonnance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL: 

Page 9 
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CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
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3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.10 Financial instruments (continued) 
Fi11ancial assets: Assessme11t w!,et!,er co11tract11al casl, flows are solely payments of pri11cipal a11d illferest. 
For the purposes of this assessment. ' principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initi al recognition . ' Interest' is defined as 
consideration for tl1e time value of money and for tl1e credit ri sk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period 
of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidi ty nsk and administrative costs).as well as a profit margin . 
In assessing whetl1er the contractual cash fl ows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company considers the contractual tenns of 
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual tenn that could change the timing or amount of 
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making thi s assessment. the Company considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

- tenns that may adjust the contractual coupon rate. including variable interest rate features: 
- prepayment and extension features: and 

- tenns that limit the Company·s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features ). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially 
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. which may include reasonable additional 
compensation for early termination of the contract . Additionally. for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its 
contractual par amount. a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount 
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early tennination) is treated as 
consistent with thi s criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initia l recognition . 

Financial assets: Subsequent 111eas11reme11t a11d gains a11d losses 
Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 

dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial assets at amonized These assets are subsequently measured at amonized cost using the effective in terest method. The amonized 
cost cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income. foreign exchange gains and losses and impaim1ent 

are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogni tion is recognised in profit or loss. 

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and 
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition , gains and losses accumulated in OC I are reclassified to 
profit or loss. 

Equi ty investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profi t or loss 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of pan of the cost of the in vestment. Other net gai ns and 
losses are reCOb'Dised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss. 

Finandal liabilities: C/assijil'ation, subsequent measurement and gait,s and losses 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financ ial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as 
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value 
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other fi nancial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amonized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gai ns and losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 
The Company derecognlzes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the 

rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the ri sks and rewards ofownership and does not 
retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company derecot,,nizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or e:-.:pire. 

The Company also derecognizes a financi al liability when its terms are modified and tl1e cash fl ows under the modified terms are 
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liabili ty based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between 
the carrying amount of the financial liabi lity extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and on ly when. the Company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 
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3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3. 11 Impairment of financia l assets 
Fmanc,a/ assets 

The Company recogni ses loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 
- financial assets measured at FVOC I- debt investments 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amorti sed cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit­
impaired. A financial asset is ' credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fl ows of 
the financial asset have occurred. 
Evidence that a fin ancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data : 
- significant financi al difficulty of tl1e borrower or issuer; or 
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 180 days or more; or 
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on tenn s that in tl1e material assessment of the Company it would not consider 
otherwise; or 

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or otlier financial reorganization ; or 
- the disappearance ofan active market for a security because of financial difficulties 
The Company measures loss all owances at an amount equal to li fe time expected credit losses. except for the following, which are measured 
as 12 month expected credit losses : 

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and 
- other debt securities and bank ba lances for which credi t risk (i.e. the ri sk of default occurring over the expected li fe of the financial 
instmment) has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 
Loss allowances for trade recei vables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financia l 
instrument. 
12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months 

after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the insm1ment is less tl1an 12 months). 

In all cases. the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the 
Company is exposed to credit risk. 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased signifi cantly since initial recob"1iti on and when estimating 
expected credit losses. the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and avai lable without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative in formation and analysis. based on the Company' s historical experience and in formed 
credit assessment and including forward-looking information. 
The Company assumes tl1at the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly ifit is more than 180 days past due. 
The Company considers a financial asset to be default when : 
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full , without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising 
security (if any is held): or 

- the financial asset is 180 days or more past due without any security 
Measurement of expected credit losses: Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are 
measured as the present value of all cash shortfall s (i.e. the difference between the cash fl ows due to the Company and the cash fl ows that the 
Company expects to receive). 
Presentation of al/owanu for expected credit losses in tfle balance sfleet: Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost 
are deducted from the gross canying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI. tl1e loss allowance is charged to profit and loss 
account and is recognised in OC I. 

Write-off: The gross canying amount of a financia l asset is wrinen off (either partially or in full ) to the extent that there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that 

could generate sufficient cash fl ows to repay tl1e amounts subject to write-off However, financial assets that are wrinen off could still be 
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 
Majority of the financial assets of the Company pertain to trade and otl1er receivables. Considering the nature of business. the Company does 
not foresee any credit risk on its trade and other receivables which may cause an impainnent. As per the agreement with tenants, the 

receivables are covered by clause of payment security mechanism which ensures receipt of all trade receivables. Also. the Company does not 
have any past history of significant impairment of trade and other receivables. 

3. 12 Financial guarantee contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts are recogni sed as a financi al liabili ty at the time the guarantee is issued. The liabili ty is initially measured at fair 
value and subsequently at the hi gher of the amount determined in accordance witl1 Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amorti sation, where appropriate. 
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash fl ows between the contractual payments 
under the debt instrument and tl1e payments that would be required without tl1e guarantee. or the estimated amount that would be payable to a 
third party for assuming the obli gations. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl 992PTC083998 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 
3.13 Leases 

Company as a lessee 
A contract is. or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. 

The Company recognises ri ght-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease tenn at the lease commencement 
date. TI,e cost of the right-of-use asse t measured at inception shall compri se of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabili ty, 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 
asset or site on which it is located . 

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less accunmlated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses. if any and adjusted 
for any remeasurement of the lease liabi li ty. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using tl1e straight-line metl1od from the commencement 
date over the shorter of lease tenn or useful life of right-of-use asset. Ri ght-of-use assets are tested for impainnent whenever there is any 
indication that their carry ing amounts may not be recoverable. Impairn1ent loss. if any, is recognised in the Statement of profi t and loss. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if that rate cannot be readily detennined. the incremental borrowing rate app licable to the 
Company. Generally, tl1e Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, 
the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing 
rate for the portfolio as a whole. 

The Company recognises the amount of tl1e re-measurement of lease li abili ty as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying 
amount of die right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a furtl1er reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, tl1e Company 
recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in profit and loss. 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a lease tern, of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes tl1e lease payments associated witl1 these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Company as a lessor 
1. Deter111111111g whether an arrangemenl comams a lease 

At inception of an arrangement, it is detennined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of the 
arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for other 

elements on the basis of their relative fair values. !fit is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, 
then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are 
made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate. 

fl. Assets held under leases 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the 
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net invesnnent in the leases. Rental 
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period of lease term. The lease term is the non-cancel I able 
period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where. at the inception of the lease. the 
Company is reasonably certain that the tenant wi ll exercise that option. 

11i. lmt,al d1ret.:t costs 
Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the carrying 
amount of leased asset and recognised over the lease tenn on the same basis as rental income. 

3.14 Revenue recognition 
Revenue towards satisfaction of a perfonnance obligati on is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) 

all ocated to that performance obli gation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account 
of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. 

i) Rental income from investment properties 
Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognised in the statement of profi t and loss on a straight-line basis over the non· 
cancellableperiod of the lease tenn . Lease incentives 1,>ranted are recognised as an inte1,>ral part of the total rental income. Contingent rents are 
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned on a receipt basi s. 

ii ) Income from finance lease 
For assets let out under finance lease, the Company recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals 
received are accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are 
apportioned between tl1e fi nance income and the reduction of the outstanding receivable. The finan ce income allocated to each period during 
the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining net investment in the finance lease. Contingent rents are 
recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned. 

iii) Re\'enue from contract with customers · 
a) Revenue from maintenance services is recognised as and when the services are rendered based on the terms of the contracts with the lessees. 
b) Other operating income is reco1,>nised when the services are rendered and the same become chargeable. Revenue from other services is 

recognised on accrual basis as per the tenns of the agreement. 
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Vilras Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAI992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.15 Recognition of dividend and interest income 

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is established. 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. TI1e 'effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 
In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit­
impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition. interest income is calculated by 
applying the effective interest rate to the amonised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of 
interest income revens to the gross basis. 

3.16 Employee benefits 

Shon-tenn employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A 
liability is recogni sed for the amount expected to be paid, if the Embassy Office Parks Group has a present legal or constrnctive obligation to 
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. There are no 
employees in the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 . 

3.17 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to 
acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset fonn pan of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred. 
Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ·effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments through the expected life of tl1e financial instrnment to tl1e amonised cost of the financial liabili ty. In calculating interest 
expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the amonised cost of the liability. 

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the 

general borrowings. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or 
sale are complete. 

3.18 Taxes 
Income-tax comprises of Current Tax and deferred tax . It is recognised to profit and loss account except to the extent an item recogni sed 
directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 

Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to tl1e tax payable 
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or 
recei ved after considering the uncenainty . if any , related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 
substantively enacted by tl1e reponing date. 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended to 
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reponing 
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses 
and tax credits. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for: 
- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transacti on; 

Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recogni sed. are reviewed at each reponing date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is 
probable/no longer probable respectively tliat the related tax benefit will be realised. 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates tliat are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or tl1e liability is senled, based on 
the laws tliat have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects. at the 
reponing date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legal ly enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to 
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities. but they intend to settle current tax 
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and li abilities will be realised simultaneously. 
Minimum Alternative Tax 
Minimum Alternative Tax (' MAT') under the provisions of the Income Tax, 196 1 is recognised as current tax in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recogni sed as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 

evidence that the Company will pay nonnal income tax during the period for which MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against 
nom1al tax liability . MAT credit recogni sed as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid 

convincing evidence no longer exists. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated) 

3 Material accounting policies (continued) 

3.19 Provisions and contingencies 
The Company recogni ses a provision when there is a present obligation (legal or constmcti ve) as a result of a past obligating event tliat 
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A di sclosure for a contingent 
liabili ty is made when there is a possible obli gation or a present obligation that may. but probably will not, require an outtlow of resources. 
Where there is a possible obligati on or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or di sclosure is 
m ::ui P 

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obli gations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be recei ved under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obli gation. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material , provisions are di scounted. 

3.20 Segment reporting 
In accordance with tl1e requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting", the Company is primarily engaged in the business of 
development, maintenance and lease of office space and related interiors and has no other primary reportable segments. The Board of 
Directors of the Company allocate the resources and assess the performance of the Company. thus are the Chief Operating Deci sion Maker 
(CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed. 
Thus tl1e segment revenue, segn1ent result, total carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities. total cost 
incurred to acquire segments assets. the total amount of charge for depreciation and amortisation during the year are all as refl ected in the 
financial statements. As the Company operates in India alone, no separate geographical segment is disclosed. 

3.21 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equi valents in tl1e Balance Sheet comprises of cash at banks and on hand. deposits held at call with bank or financial 
institutions, otl1er short-term, highly liquid investments witl1 original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertibl e to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant ri sk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flow, cash and cash equi valents consist of cash and cash equi valents, as defined above, net of 
outstanding book overdrafts as they are considered an integral pan of the Company's cash management. 

3.22 Distribution policy 
In tenns oftl1e REIT Regulations and Net Distributable Cash Flow (NDCF) framework which prescribes for the minimum amount o f . DC F 
to be distributed to Embassy Offi ce Parks REIT: 

- Not less than 90% of the NDCF of the Company are required to be distributed to the Embassy Offi ce Parks REIT. in proport ion to its 
shareholding in the Company, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13. 

- The aforesaid net distributabl e cash fl ows are made available to Embassy Office Parks REIT in the form of (i) Interest paid on Shareholder 
Debt provided by Embassy Office Parks RE IT to the Company, (ii ) Principal repayment of Shareholder Debt, (iii ) Dividend decl ared by the 
Company and received by Embassy Office Parks RE IT. 
SEBI has issued Revised framework for computation of Net Distributable Cash Flow (NDCF) by Real Estate Investment Tmsts (RE!Ts) 
dated December 06, 2023 which is effecti ve from April I, 2024. 

3.23 Statement of Cash flow 
Cash fl ows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature 
and any deferrals or accmals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating 
acti vities), investing and financin g acti vities of the Company are segregated. 

Forthe purpose of the Statement of Cash Fl ow, cash and cash eq uival ents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. as tl1ey 
are considered an integral part of the Company ' s cash management. 

3,24 Earnings per share 
The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profi t/ (loss) attributable to owner's of tl1e Company for the year by tl1e 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period. 

The nwnber of shares used in computing diluted earnings/(loss) per share compri ses the weighted average shares considered for deri ving 
basic earnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average nwnber of equi ty shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all 
diluti ve potential equity shares. 

Dilutive potential equi ty shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In 
computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equi ty shares that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase 
loss per share are included. 

3.25 Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and tax 
The Company has elected to present earnings before finance cost. depreciation, amorti sation and tax as a separate line item on the face of the 
Statement of Profit and Loss . The Company measures earnings before finance cost, depreciati on, amortisation and tax on the basis of profi t/ 
(loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortisation expense, finan ce cost 
and tax expense. 
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Vikas Telecom Private Lim ited 
CIN: U64202KA l 992PTC083998 
Notes to the fi nancia l statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. mi llion unless otherwise stated) 

4 A Property, Plant and Equipment 
Reconciliation of carrying amount for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 

Pa rticulars 

Gross Block (cost or deemed cost): 
As at 1 April 2022 
Additions 
Disposals 

As at 31 March 2023 

As at I Apri l 2023 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated deprecia tion 
As at l Apri l 2022 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 
As at 31 Ma rch 2023 

As at l April 2023 

Charge for the year 
Disposals 
As at 31 Ma rch 2024 

Carrying amounts (net) : 
As at 31 Ma rch 2024 
As at 31 March 2023 

( i) Refer note 18 for information on the charge created. 
(ii) Reie r note 35 for disclosure of contractua l commitments for the acq ui sition of Property, Plant and equi pment. 

(1/11.1 .,paff ,s 1ntent1onallv leji blank) 
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Owned 
Tota l 

Com outers Land 

5.99 16.92 22.9 1 
0. 11 - 0. 11 

- -
6.10 16.92 23.02 

6.10 16 .92 23.02 

- - -
- - -

6.10 16.92 23.02 

5. 25 - 5.25 
0.32 - 0.32 
- - -

5.57 - 5.57 

5.57 - 5.57 
0.42 - 0.42 

-
5.99 - 5.99 

0. 11 16.92 17.03 
0.53 16.92 17.45 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN : U64202KA1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the yea r ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

4 B Ca pital work-in-progress (CWIP) 

Particulars 

Hotel and conventi on centre 

Tota l 

Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule 

Status 

As at 31 March 2024 
Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at 31 March 2023 
Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

Borrowing cost capitali sed 

Less than I year 

883.14 

295.63 

Asat As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1.485 .30 602. 16 

1,485.30 602.16 

Amount in CWIP for a )l_eriod of 
I - 2 years 2 - 3 yea rs More than 3 yea rs 

Total 

295.63 75.67 230.86 1,485.30 

75.67 71.29 159.57 602.16 

i) Additions to Capital work in progress include borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 97.53 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 (3 1 March 2023 Rs 31 .30 million) on the basi s of capitalisation rate on Weighted average 
borrowing cost (WABC) at 8. 18% p.a. (3 1 March 2023: 7.97% p.a.) 

ii ) As on 31 March 2024 and 3 1 March 2023, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost, based on original approved plan . 

Movement of capital work-in-progress 
Particulars 

Opening balance 
Add - Additions to Capital work in progress during the year 
Less - Capitali sation to Property, plant & equipment during the year 
Closing balance 
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As at 
31 March 2024 

602.16 
883 .14 

1,485.30 

As a t 
3 1 Ma rch 2023 

\ 

\)/ 
J<.' 

306.53 
295.63 

602. 16 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KA 1992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the yea r ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

5 Investment properties 
Reconci liation of carry ing amount for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Particulars 
Building 

Plant and 
Machinery 

Gross Block (cost or deemed cost): 
As at I April 2022 22 ,595.38 4,557.88 

Additions 123.0 1 73.82 

Disoosals - (0.07) 

As at 31 March 2023 22,718.39 4,631.63 
As at I Apri I 2023 22,7 18.39 4,63 1.63 

Additions 622.63 289.33 

Disposals - -
As at 3 1 Ma rch 2024 23,341.02 4,920.96 
Accumulated depreciation 
As at I Apri l 2022 3, 107.48 1,231.74 

Charge for the year 626.96 239.49 

Disposals (0 06) 

As at 31 Ma rch 2023 3,734.44 1,471.1 7 
As at l April 2023 3,734.44 1,471.17 

Charge for the year 656. 18 278.64 

Disposal s - -
As at 31 March 2024 4,390.62 1,749.8 1 

Carrvinl!. amounts (net): 
As at 31 March 2024 18,950.40 3, 171.15 
As at 31 March 2023 18,983.95 3, 160.46 

Tangible, Owned 
Furniture and 

Fixtures 

465.46 

-
-

465.46 
465.46 

4.90 

-
470.36 

260. 14 
36.43 

-
296,57 
296.57 

63.86 

-
360.43 

109,93 
168.89 

Total 
Land (refer note (ii)) 

Vehicle 
Electrical 

(A) 
Freehold 

Leasehold land (C) 
Eq uipment (B) 

- 297.99 27 ,916.71 39605 113 .00 

- 29.56 226.39 - -
- - (0.07) - -
- 327.55 28,143.03 396.05 11 3.00 
- 327.55 28,143 03 396 05 11 3.00 

0.61 44 .91 962.38 50.13 -
- - - - -

0.61 372.46 29,105.41 446.18 113.00 

- 94.57 4,693.93 - -
- 31.55 934.43 - -
- - (0 06) - -
- 126.12 5,628.30 - -
- 126.12 5,628.30 - -

0.04 35.83 1,034 55 - -
- - - - -

0.04 161.95 6,662.85 - -

0.57 210.51 22,442.56 446.18 113.00 
- 201.43 22,514.73 396.05 113.00 

i)The above owned assets held as investment properties have been leased out to lessees I held for lease on operati ng lease basis. Refer note no 37 for details of operating lease 

Grand Total 
(A+ B + C) 

28,425.76 

22639 
(0.07) 

28,652.08 
28,652 08 

1,012.51 

29,664.59 

4,693.93 
934.43 

(006) 
5,628.30 
5,628.30 
1,034.55 

-
6,662.85 

23,001.74 
23,023.78 

ii ) The Company had earlier entered into lease-cum sale agreement for the land located in Embassy Tech Vi llage with Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) for a period of 20 years commenc ing from 16 
June 2006. As per the lease agreement KIADB shall sell the land to the Company at any time during the tenure of the lease or on expiry of the lease period, if the Company has performed all the conditions contained in the 
agreement and com mitted no breach thereof The Company had converted the leasehold land measuring 81.39 acres into a freehold land as per the sale deed en tered with KIADB on 12 February 20 18. Further, I acre 37 
guntas leasehold land is yet to be registered and is classified as a leasehold land and no depreciation has been charged on the same. 

iii ) Plant and Mac hinery, Furniture and Fixtures and Electrical Equipment are physically attached to the Bui ldings and are an integral part of it , therefore, they are considered as a part of investment properties. 

iv) Investment properties comprises a commercial building and other assets formi ng part of bu ilding, that is leased to third parties. The license agreement entered with tenants may or may not contain an initial non­
cance llable period. Subsequent renewals of these li cense agreements are negotiated wi th the tenants and historically the average renewal period ranges between three and five years. 

v) Refer note 18 and 4 1 for information on the charge created . The above investment properties have been provided as security to its holding entity for the Non-con vert ible debentures issued . 
vi) Reier note 35 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Investment properties 
vii ) Additions to investment property and in vestment property under development include borrowing cost amounting to Rs.469 .57 million (3 1 March 2023 · Rs. 171 .37 mi lli on) on the basis of capitalisation rate on Weighted 
average borrowing cost (WABC) at 8.58% p.a. (3 1 March 2023 : 8.10% p.a.) 

viii ) All immovab le properties (Except Leasehold Land) are held in the name of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and 3 1 Marc h 2023. 

• ' 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
ClN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

otes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

S Investment Properties (continued) 

Amounts reco1mised in statement of nrofit and loss for investment nronerties 
Particulars 

Rental income derived from investment properties 

Less: Direcl operating expenses from investment properties that generated rental 
income (including repairs and maintenance). 

Less: Direct operating expenses from investment properties that did not generating 
rental income (including repairs and maintenance). 

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation, amortization and indirect 
expenses 

Less: Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 

Determination of fair values 

For the yea r ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

6,975.95 6,804.69 

(590 32) (568 92) 

(307 93 ) (302 64) 

6,077,70 5,933.13 

(1,95455) ( 1,854.42) 

4,123.15 4,078.71 

The fair value of investment property as at 3 I March 2024 and 31 March 2023 has been detennined by a independent registered valuer as 
defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation ) Rules, 20 17, having appropriately recognised professional 
qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being val ued. 

The independent external professional property valuers have considered valuation technique discounted cash fl ows in arriving at the fair 
value as at the reporting date. These valuation methods involve certain estimates. The management has exercised its judgement and is 
satisfied that the valuation methods and estimates are reflective of the current market conditions. 

The discounted cash flows method involves the estimation of an income stream over a period and discounting the income stream with an 
expected internal rate of return and terminal yield. The valuation model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the 
property, taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacant periods, occupancy rate, lease incentive costs such as rent-free periods 
and other costs not paid by tenants. The expected cash flows are discounted using risk-adjusted di scount rates. Among other factors , the 
discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quali ty and lease terms. 

All resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3. 

Fair values 

Particulars Amount 

Fair Value at 3 1 March 2024 1,07,377 

Fair Value at 31 March 2023 1,06,872 

(thrs space rs rntentronally left blank) 
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Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwi se stated ) 

6 Investment properties under development (fPUD): 

In vestment properties under development comprises of upcom ing buildings and infrastructural upgrades in Em bassy Tech Village. 

The building/block wise details is as fo llows: 

Particulars 

Block 8 office 
Others 

i. Investment properties under development ageing 
Status 

As at 31 March 2024 
Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at 31 March 2023 
Projects in progress 

Projects temporari ly suspended 

Less than I year 

3,733.64 

1,987.24 

As at 
31 March 2024 

6,065.84 
654.96 

6,720.80 

Amount in TPUD for a period of 

I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 

1,987.24 515.17 484.75 

5 15.17 207.66 277.09 

As at 
31 March 2023 

2,426.07 

56109 
2,987.16 

Total 

6,720.80 

2,987.16 

ii. As on 3 1 March 2024 and 3 1 March 2023, there are no IPUD projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost, based on ori ginall y 
approved plan. 

iii . Movement of investment properties under development (TPUD) 
Particulars 

Opening balance 

Add - Additions to Investment properties under development during the year 

Less - Capitalisation to Investment properties during the year 

Closing balance 

7 Intangible assets 

Reconcil iation of carrying amount for the year ended 3 I March 2024 

Particulars Computer 
software 

Gross Block (cost or deemed cost): 

As at 1 April 2022 6.88 
Additions 
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2023 6.88 

As at 1 April 2023 6.88 
Additions -
Disoosals 
As at 31 March 2024 6.88 

Accumulated amortization 

As at 1 April 2022 6.88 
Amortization for the year 
As at 31 March 2023 6.88 

As at I April 2023 6.88 
Amortizati on for the year 

As at 31 March 2024 6.88 
Carrying amounts (net): 
As at 3 I March 2024 -
As at 31 March 2023 -
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Owned 

Right to use 
brand 

891.20 
-
-

891.20 

89 1.20 

-
891.20 

797.02 
94.18 

891.20 

89 1.20 

-
891.20 

-
-

As at 
31 March 2024 

2,987.16 

4,525.50 

(79 1 86) 
6,720.80 

CAM Service Rights 

4,600.00 
-

4,600.00 

4.600 00 

4,600.00 

I ,226.67 
920.00 

2,146.67 

2,146.67 

920.00 

3,066.67 

1,533.33 
2,453.33 

As at 
31 March 2023 

999.93 

2,086.66 

(9943) 
2,987.16 

Total 

5,498.08 
-
-

5,498.08 

5,498. 08 

5,498.08 

2,030.57 
1,0 14 18 
3,044.75 

3,044.75 

920.00 

3,964.75 

1,533.33 
2,453.33 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
C IN: U64202KAI992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

8 Other non-current financial assets 

Particu lars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Banks deposits with maturi ty more than I 2 months (refer note A be low) 

Interest accrued but not due on deposits 
Finance lease rece ivable (refer note 38) 

Unbilled revenue 
Security deposits 

- to others 

Note A: 
Fixed deposits pledged against Bank loans 

9 Deferred Tax Asset (net) 

Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities on 
Impact of difference between Property , Plant and Equipment and Investment 
Properties as per financials and tax books 

Unbilled revenue 
Fair valuation of security deposit (net of deferred income on security deposit) 

Deferred tax assets on 
Others 
Tax losses 
Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement 

refer note 20 

10 Non-current tax assets (net) 
Particulars 

Advance tax, net of provision for tax 

11 Other non-current assets 

Unsecured considered good 
Capital advances 

- to re lated parties (refer note 4 1) 

- to others 
Prepayments 
Paid under protest to government authorities 

(1h1s space 1s mtent1onally /eji blank) 
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As at 
31 March 2024 

73.99 

5.03 

14.35 

853.65 

147.98 
1,095.00 

73.99 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at 
31 March 2024 

61.34 

61.34 

As at 
31 March 2024 

17.14 
68804 

2.88 
708.06 

As at 
31 March 2023 

50.89 

0.5 1 

45.76 

856.44 

163.74 
1, 11 7.34 

50.89 

As at 
31 March 2023 

(2,869.56) 

(358.09) 

( 12 96) 

47.94 
3,380.21 

9 1. 59 
279. 13 

As at 
31 March 2023 

218.75 

218.75 

As at 
31 March 2023 

11.68 
938. 10 

5.80 
2.88 

958.46 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
ClN : U64202KA l 992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

12 Trade receivables 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
Unsecured 
Considered good 

- related parties (refer note 41 ) 

- others 
Credit impaired 
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 

As at 
31 March 2024 

0.30 

31.17 

31.47 

As at 
31 March 2023 

0.36 

31.69 

32.05 

a. The Co mpany's exposure to credit and currency risks, trade receivables ageing schedule based on requirement of Schedule Ill and loss 
allowances related to trade receivables is disclosed in Note 42. 

13 

14 

15 

b. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. 
Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respective ly in which any director is a partner, a director or a 
member. 

Cash and cash equiva lents 

Particu lars 

Balances with banks 
- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 

Other current financial assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Receivable under finance lease (refer note 38) 
Unbilled revenue 
Unbi lled maintenance charges 
Security deposits 

- to related parties (refer note 41) 

Other current assets 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Advance fo r supply of goods and rendering of services 

- to related parties (refer note 41) 
- to others 

Balances with government authorities 
Prepayments 

(this space 1s mtenlionally /eji blank) 
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As at 
31 March 2024 

0.06 
0.06 

As at 
31 March 2024 

31.41 
192.23 
74.5 1 

105 .00 
403.15 

As at 
31 March 2024 

54.75 
5.81 

174.42 
8.94 

243.92 

As at 
31 March 2023 

130.68 

130.68 

As at 
31 March 2023 

102.31 
168.32 
67.78 

105.00 
443.41 

As at 
31 March 2023 

2.47 
9 139 
15.04 

108.90 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

16 Equity share capital 
Particulars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023 

Authorised capital 
64,000,000 (3 1 Marc h 2023 64,000,000) equity shares ofRs. 10 each 
50,000 (31 March 2023 : 50,000) redeemable preference shares of Rs. IO each 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
6,515,036 (31 March 2023: 6,5 15,036) equity shares of Rs. IO each. 

640.00 

0.50 

65. 15 
65,15 

640.00 

0.50 

65.15 
65,15 

A Equity shares 
a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year is as given below: 

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Add: Movement during the year 
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 

No. of shares 
6,5 15,036 

6,515,036 

Amount No. of shares 
65.15 6,515,036 

65.15 6,515,036 

Amount 
65.15 

65.15 

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares: 
Each holder of equity share, as reflected in the reco rds of the Company as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of 
each share held fo r all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder's meeting. The Company declares and pays dividends in Ind ian Rupees. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the 
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. 
However, no such preferential amounts existed as at the balance sheet date. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. 

c) Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Com pany: 
Name of the Promoter ____ :;.;A;;;,s,_;,a;.;;,t,;;,3,;;,1,;;,M..cac;;.r:;.;ccch:;.;2:;.;0,c;2,..;,4 _______ ,..;,A.;;.;s;..,a;;..t;_3;_1'-M=a;.;;,r.;..;ch_20_2.;..;3 ___ _ 

Embassy Office Parks REIT* 
% of holding 

I00.00% 
100.00% 

No. of shares 
6,5 15,036 
6,515,036 

* I equity share is held by an individual where the beneficial interest lies with Embassy Office Parks REIT. 

% of holding No. of shares 
100.00% 6,515,036 

100,00% 6,515,036 

d) Buyback of shares and shares allotted by way of bonus shares: 

B 

The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has it bo ught back any class of equity shares during the period 
of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date, further the Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash during the 
period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 

Shareholding of Promoters 
As at 31 March 2024 
Name of the Promoter Shares held by Promoters % Change during 

No, of shares as at % of total shares No. of shares as at % of total shares the year ended 
31 March 2024 as at 31 March 2024 I April 2023 as at 1 April 2023 31 March 2024 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 6,515,036 I00.00% 6,515,036 I00.00% 0.00% 

Total 6 515 036 100,00% 6,515,036 100.00% 0.00% 

As at 31 March 2023 
Name of the Promoter Shares held by Promoters % Change during 

No. of shares as at % of total shares No. of shares as at % of total shares the yea r ended 
31 March 2023 as at 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 as at 1 April 2022 31 March 2023 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 6,5 15,036 100.00% 6,515,036 I00.00% 0.00% 

Total 6,515,036 100,00% 6,515,036 100.00% 0.00% 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
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17 Other e ui 
Particulars 

Reserves and surplus 

(i) Other Reserves 
General reserve 
Balance at the beginnin g of tl1e year 
Movement during the year 

Balance as at the end of the year 

(ii ) Retained earnings 
Balance at the beginning of tl1e year 
Add: Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 
Transfer to debenture redemption reserves 
Balance as at the end of the year 

(iii ) Equity portion of optionally convertible debentures 

(iv) Equity portion of compulsorily convertible debentures 

( v) Capital reserve 
Balance at the beginning of tl1e year 
Movement during the year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

(vi) Debenture redemption reserves 
Balance at the begi nning of the year 
Additions during the year 
Balance as at the end of the year 

Nature and purpose of other reserves: 

General reserve 

As at 
31 March 2024 

50.00 

50.00 

796.36 
(250 80) 

545.56 

1,575.09 

2,152 .59 

(6,833.16 ) 

(6,833.16) 

244.20 
250.80 

495.00 

2,014.92 

As at 
31 March 2023 

50.00 

50.00 

( 1160) 
255.80 

(244 20) 

1,575.09 

2,152.59 

(6,833 16) 

(6,833.16) 

244.20 

244.20 

2,811.28 

Thi s represents transfer of debenture redemption reserve on redemption of debenrures. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the specific 
requirements of Companies Act, 2013 

Retained earnings 
The c,unulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading of retained 
earnings. Al the end of tl1e year, total comprehensive income/(loss) in the year after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the 
retained earnings. 

Equity portion of optionally convertible redeemable debentures 
It represents the equi ty component aris ing on fair valuation oftl1e optionally convertible redeemable debentures as required under Ind AS 109. 

Equity portion of compulsory convertible redeemable debentures 
It represents the equity component arising on fair valuation of the debenntres as required under Ind AS 109. 

Capital reserve 
During year ended March 3 1, 2021 the Company had entered into a restructuring scheme of arrangement with Embassy Real Estate Developments and 
Services Private Limited, ("Demerger Company") for transfer of certain assets and liabilities at agreed values for a consideration which wi ll be sett led 
by issuance of Redeemable Preference shares ("RPS" ). 

The scheme was subsequently approved by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCL T" ) vide order no CP (CAA) No 43/88/2020 dated 
December 2020 upon which the same shall be effecti ve. 

The excess of the consideration over the net book value of assets less liabilities is adjusted in Capital Reserve. 

The balance Capital Reserve represents resultant capital reserve on account of scheme of arran gement. 

Debenture redemption reserve 
Company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures during the year ended 31 March 2023 and as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13, 
Company is required to create debenture redemption reserve out of the profits available for payment of dividend. 
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18 Non-current borrowings 
Particulars 

Secured 
Tenns loan s 

- from banks (Refer note A) 
- from related parties (Refer note A) (refer note 41 ) 

Debentures (Refer note A) 

Overdraft 
- from banks (Refer note A) (refer note 41) 

Unsecured 
Loan from related parties (Refer note B) 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

13 ,929.58 9. 190.72 
1.207.65 

4,945.10 4.940.92 

1,272.16 1.385.38 

12. 198.94 I 3,4 I 0.85 

32 345.78 30 135.52 

A) Details of security, repayment and interest on term loans from banks (including current maturities of non-current borrowings): 

(i) Term loan from HSBC Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 5,199.45 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 5,191.24 million). The loan is secured by:-
a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks tl1ereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 

Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypotl1ecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

c) A debt service reserve account with I months equivalent of ensuing repayment obligations in fonn of interest bearing deposit 

d) Repayment and interest terms As at 
31 March 2024 

From Bank 
Repayable in structured montl1ly instalments with no moratorium 5, 199.45 

HSBC Bank facility interest rate of IM T-Bill rate + applicable spread, currently 8.3 1 % p.a. 

As at 
31 March 2023 

5.1 91.24 

(ii) Term loans from HSBC Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 1,997.89 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 1046.64 million). The loan is secured by:-
a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 

Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypotl1ecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Vi llage, Bengaluru. 

c) A debt service reserve account with I months equivalent of ensuing repayment obligations in fonn of interest bearing deposit 

d) Repayment and interest terms As at 

From Bank 
Repayable as bullet payment on 29 October 2025. 

Each tranche carries an interest rate of l M T-Bill rate as applicable on date ofdrawdown + applicable 
spread, average rate being 8.50% p.a 

31 March 2024 

1,997 .89 

As at 
31 March 2023 

1.046 64 

(iii) Term loans from ICICI Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 2,953.52 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 2,952.83 million). The loan is secured by:-
a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 

Tech Village, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way ofhypotl1ecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Vi llage, Bengaluru. 

c) Repayment and interest terms As at 
31 March 2024 

From Bank 
Repayable in 36 montl1ly instalments with Nil moratorium, from the date of drawdown. 983 .94 
The loan carries an interest rate of3 month MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 8.65% p.a. 

Repayable in 36 monthly instalments with Nil moratoriwn , from the date of drawdown. 1.969 58 

The loan carries an interest rate of l month MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 8.60% p.a. 
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As at 
31 March 2023 

983 .71 

1,969.1 2 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

18 Non-current borrowings (continued) 
(iv) Term loans from HSBC Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 3,808.33 million (3 1 Ma rch 2023: Rs. NIL). The loan is secured by:-

a) First charge by way of mortgage on land admeasuring 12.29 acres and building being constructed thereon identified as Blocks 8A, 8A-(MLCP). 8B, SC 
& 8D along with hotel havi ng an aggregate leasable area of 18,39,717 sq. ft situated at Embassy TechVi llage, Bengalurn . 

b) First charge by way of hypotl1ecation of current assets and receivables pertaining to tl1e mortgaged property at sirnated at Embassy Tech Village. 
Bengal urn 

c) Keepwell Undertaking from Embassy Office Parks RE IT. 
d ) Repayment and interest terms 

From Bank 
Repayable by way of a single bullet repayment at the end of 30th month from date of first 

di sbursement i.e. 26 December 2025 . Each tranche carries interest of Thi ll + applicable spread, 
currently average rate being 8. 70% p.a. 

As at 
31 Ma rch 2024 

3,808.33 

As at 
3 I March 2023 

(v) Overdraft facility availed as sublimit of Term loan from ICICI Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 741.64 million (3 1 March 2023: Rs. 748.50 
million). The loan is secured by:-

a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 
Tech Village, Bengaluni. 

b) First charge by way of hypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy Tech Village, Bengalurn. 

c) Repayment and interest terms As at 
3 I March 2024 

From Bank 
Repayable by way of a three annual installments from the date of first drawdown . 741.64 

The debt carries interest of I montl1 MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 8.65 •• p.a. 

As at 
31 Ma rch 2023 

748.50 

The Company uses this long tenn Overdraft facili ty to park temporary excess funds and utili ses such temporary excess funds as and when needed and 
therefore not considered as loan repayment or drawdown for the purpose of NDCF computation. 

(vi) Term loans from AX IS Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. NIL (31 March 2023: Rs. 1,219.39 million). The loan is secured by:-
a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 mill ion square feet at Embassy 

Tech Village. Bengalurn. 

b) First charge by way ofhypothecation of the receivables of the above Buildings of Embassy TechVillage, Bengaluru. 

c) A debt service reserve account with 3 montl1s equivalent of ensuing repayment obligations in form of interest bearing deposit 

d) Repayment and interest terms As at 

From Bank 
Repayable in 3 annual instalments witl1 Ni l moratorium, from the date of drawdown. • 

The loan carries an interest rate of I Year MCLR 

• The loan was foreclosed as on I 9 January 2024 

31 Ma rch 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023 

1,2 19.39 

(vii) Overdraft facility availed from AXIS Bank as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 641.37 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 747.73 million). The loan is secured 
a) First pari passu charge on mortgage on the underlying parcel 5 land and buildings and blocks thereon measuring to 2.43 million square feet at Embassy 

Tech Vill age, Bengaluru. 

b) First charge by way of hypotl1ecation of the receivables of the above Bui ldings of Embassy Tech Vi llage, Bengalurn. 

c) Repayment and interest terms As at 
31 March 2024 

From Bank 
Repayable by way of a tl1ree annual installments from the date of first drawdown. 641.37 

The debt carries interest of I month MCLR plus applicable spread, currently 9.10 % p.a. 

As at 
3 I March 2023 

747.73 

The Company uses this long term Overdraft facility to park temporary excess funds and utilises such temporary excess funds as and when needed and 
therefore not considered as loan repayment or drawdown for the purpose of NDCF computation. 
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18 Non-cu rrent borrowings (continued) 
(vii i) 4,945.10 million (31 March 2023: -',940.92 million ) VTPL Series 1, Non-Convertible debentures (NCO) 2022, face value ofRs. 1,000,000 each 

During August 2022. company had issued 4.950 li sted. AAA rated, secured, redeemable, transferable, green debt securi ties in the form of non­
convenible VTPL Series I NC D 2022 debentures having face value of Rs. I million each amounting to Rs.4,950 million with a coupon rate of 7.65% 
p.a. payable quanerly. 

The debentures described above were li sted on the Bombay Stock Exchange on 5 September 2022. 
Security term 
The NCD's are secured against each of the following in favour of the Debenture Tmstee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders): 

I. A first ranking pari passu charge by way of equi table mon gage on the constmcted and related parcels of immovable propenies identified as Parcel 5, 
admeasuring 2.43 million square feet and fonning pan of the development known as Embassy Tech Village, Bengalum. 

2. A firs t ranking pari passu charge by way ofhypothecation over identified bank account and receivables. 
3. Keepwell Undertaking from Embassy Office Parks REIT. 
Redemption terms 
I. Interest is payable on the last day of each fi nancial quan er in a year unti l the Scheduled Redemption Date. 
2. These debentures wi ll be redeemed on the expiry of 2 years and 364 days from tl1e Deemed Date of Allonnent fo r the Debentures at par; on 29 
August 2025. 

3. In case of downgrading of credit rating, the coupon rate shall increase by 0.25 '),o - 1.00% over and above the applicable coupon rate calc ula ted from 
the date of change of rating. In case of any subsequent upgrading of credit rating, the coupon rate shall restore/decrease by 0.25% - 1.00% over and 
above the coupon rate calcul ated from tl1e date of change of rating. 

4. The issuer shall have the option of redeeming all or part of the debentures on a pro-rata basis at any time on a specified call opt ion date (between 
April 2025 to June 2025 ) by delivering a Call Option Notice to the debenture holders prior to the relevant call option date. 

The company has maintained Securi ty Cover of2. 10 times as at 3 1 March 2024, which is hi gher than the limit of 1.85 times stipula ted in the debenture 
tmst deed dated 29 August 2022. 

(ix) Disclosure required under SE:B1 circular SEBUHO/DDHS/DDHS/C IR/P/2018/7 1 dated 13 April 2018 
Other requirements as per Guidelines for issuance of debt securi ties by regulations of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 2015 

Particulars As at As at 
31 Ma rch 2024 31 March 2023 

Asset cover ratio (refer a below) 0.30 0.28 
Debt - equi ty ratio (refer b below) ( 1666) ( I 1 02) 

Debt - service coverage ratio (refer c below) 2.26 1.88 
Interest-service coverage ratio (refer d below) 2.26 1.85 
Outstanding redeemable preference sharesA 

Debenture redemption reserve 495.00 244 .20 
Capital redemption reserveA 
Net wonh (refer e below) (1.949 77) (2,746. 13) 
Net profit after tax 796.36 255.80 

Earnings per unit - Basic 122.23 39.26 
Earnings per unit - Diluted 122.23 39.26 
Current Ratio (in times) (refer fbelow) 0.16 0. 18 
Long term debt to working capital (in times) (refer g below) (880) (9.27) 

Bad debts to Account receivable ratio (in times) (refer h below) A 
Current liability ratio (in times) (refer i below) 0.12 0. 11 
Total debts to total assets (in times) (refer j below) 0.92 0.93 
Debtors ' turnover (in times) (refer k below) 219.64 243.89 
Inventory turnover (refer I below) A -
Operating margin (in %) (refer m below) 87 .16% 87.19% 
Net profi t margin (in %) (refer n below) 11 .42% 3.76% 
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18 Non-current borrowings (continued) 
(x) Disclosure required under SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018 

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis financial statements: -

a) Asset cover rati o = Total borrowings• / Gross asset value as computed by independent valuers 

b) Debt equi ty ratio = Total borrowings*/ Total Equi ty .. 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Finance costs. Depreciation, Amoni sation and Tax / [Finance cost (net of capitalisation and 
excluding interest on lease deposit ) + Principal repayments made during the year to the extent not refinanced] 

d) Interest Service Coverage Rati o = Earnings before Finance costs, Depreciation. Amonisati on and Tax / Finance cost (net of capitalisation and 
excluding interest on lease deposit ) 

e) Net wonh = Equity share capital + Other equi ty 

t) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current liabilities 
g) Long term debt to working capital = Long tenn debt* (Non current) / working capital (i.e., Current assets less current liabilit ies ) 

h) Bad debts to Account receivable ratio = Bad Debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivables 
i) Current liabili ty ratio = Current li abilities / Total liabilities 
j ) Total debts to total assets = Total debt / Total assets 
k) Debtors' turnover = Revenue from operations / average trade receivables 

I) lnventol)' turnover = Cost of Materials consumed I Average Inventory 
m) Operating margin = Net Operating Income••• / Revenue from Operations 

n) Net profit margin = Profit after tax / Total income 
• Total borrowings = Long-term borrowings + Shon-term borrowings 
.. Total Equity = Equi ty share capital + Other equi ty 

~ Not applicable 
*** NOi is defin ed as revenue from operations (which includes (i) facility rentals, (ii) maintenance services income, (iii ) income from fin ance lease. 
and (iv) other operating income for Commercial Offi ces) less direct operating expenses (which includes (i) operating and maintenance expenses 
including common area maintenance expenses (i i ) property taxes. (iii ) rent and (iv) insurance). 

B) Details of security, repayment and interest on loan from related parties including interest accrued but not due 
Embassy Office Parks REIT balance as at 31 March 2024: Rs. 12,198,94 million (31 March 2023: Rs.13,410.85 million) 
a) Unsecured loan from holding entity. 

b) Repayment and interest terms 

Interest · 12.50% per annum. The Lender may reset the rate of interest applicable to all or any tranche 
of the loan amount on: (i) any drawdown date: and (ii ) any interest payment date prior to the 
repayment date, by giving a notice of not less than 5 (five) days to the borrower. provided that 
pursuant to any such reset, the interest rate shall continue to be not less tl1an 12.50% per annwn and 
not more than 14.00% per annum for any disbursements of the loan amount out of the proceeds 
obtained by lender by listing its units. 
Repayment: 
(a) Bullet repayment on the date falling at the end of 15 (fifteen ) years from the first drawdown date. 
(b) Earlv repavment option (wholly or panially) is available to the Company . 

As at 
31 March 2024 

12, 198.94 

C ) There are no defaults in repayment of principal and interest to lenders as on 3 1 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 
D) There were no requirements of filing quanerly returns or statements of current assets with banks in respect of any loan. 

19 Other non-current financial liabilities 
Particulars 

Lease deposits 
Capital creditors 

- others 

20 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Particulars 

Deferred tax liabilities on 
Impact of difference between Propeny, Plant and Equipment and In vestment Propenies as per 
financial s and tax books 
Unbill ed revenue 
Fair valuation of security deposit (net of deferred income on securi ty deposit ) 

Deferred tax assets on 
Others 
Tax losses 
Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement 

As at 
31 March 2024 

439.57 

23 .39 

462.96 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2,978.29 

365.47 
8.00 

(6 1781 
(3,038 94 ) 

(1 97.87) 
53.17 

As at 
31 March 2023 

13.-11 0.85 

As at 
31 March 2023 

873.99 

45.38 

919.37 

As at 
31 March 2023 

i) The Company has recognized MAT credit entitlement amounting to Rs. 197.87 Million (31 March 2023: Rs.91.59 Million) based on tl1e expected 
future taxable income basis which it shall be able to adj ust the aforementioned MAT credit ent itlement . 
iii The Company has brought forward unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs.8,696.65 Million (3 1 March 2023: Rs. 10,968.11 million). 
iii ) Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation have been recognized in the books to the extent it is probable tliat the taxable profits will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. 
iv ) Also refer note 9 
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Notes to the financial statements for the yea r ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

21 Other non-current liabilities 
Particulars 

Deferred lease rentals 

22 Current borrowin s 
Particulars 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
- from banks (Refer note 18A) 

Overdraft 
- from banks (Refer note 18A) (refer note 41 ) 

23 Trade avables 
Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below) 
- others 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpri ses and small enterpri ses 
- related parties (refer note 41) 
- others 

As at 
31 Ma rch 2024 

33.53 

33.53 

As at 
31 March 2024 

29.6 1 

11 0.85 

As at 
31 March 2024 

18.25 

31.08 
4.68 

Disclosure as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" ("MSMED Act, 2006"). 

Particulars 

- The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 
the accounting year; 

- The amount of interest paid by the Company in tenns of secti on 16 of MSMED Act. 2006, along 
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting 
year; 

- TI1e amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
MSMED Act, 2006. (refer note I below ) 

- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year: and 
- The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such 
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006. 

Note I • No interest has been paid by the Company during the year. 

Note 2: Refer note 42 for ageing based on requirement of Schedule Ill 

24 Other Current financial liabilities 
Particulars 

Lease deposits 
Capital creditors 

- related parties (refer note 41) 
- others 

Other liabilities 
- related parties (refer note 41) 
- others 

25 Other current liabilities 
Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Advance from customers 
Unearned income 
Deferred lease rentals 
Others 
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As at 
31 March 2024 

18.25 

As at 
31 March 2024 

3,053 .39 

8.25 
616.69 

44.44 
98 .03 

3,820.80 

As at 
31 March 2024 

81.74 
58.11 
56.08 
80.33 
64.00 

340,26 

As at 
31 March 2023 

97.4 1 

97.41 

As at 
31 March 2023 

11.74 

110.85 

9 

As at 
31 March 2023 

15 .47 

99.38 
13.28 

As at 
31 March 2023 

15.47 

As at 
31 March 2023 

2,696.26 

40.92 
4 12.80 

73.33 
127.19 

3,350.50 

As at 
31 March 2023 

102. 14 
93.90 

3.27 
10 1.90 
64.00 

365,21 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless othenvise stated) 

26 Revenue from operations 
Particulars 

Facil ity rentals (refer note 37 and 41) 
Revenue from contracts with customers 

- Maintenance services (refer note 41) 
Income from finance lease (refer note 38) 
Other operating income 

Note: Contract liabilities 
Particulars 

Advance received from customers (refer note 25} 

Uneamed revenue (refer note 25) 

Revenue recognised over a period of time 

Maintenance Services 

27 Interest income 
Particulars 

Interest income 

- on fixed deposits with banks 
- on loans given to related parries (refer note 41) 
- on income tax refund 
- others 

28 Other income 
Particulars 

Profit on sale of mutual funds 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Miscellaneous income (refer note 41) 

29 Operating and maintenance expenses 
Particulars 

Power and fuel (net) (refer note 4 1) 

Propeny management fees (refer note 41) 

Repairs and maintenance towards 
- common area maintenance (refer note 4 1) 
- bui ldings (refer note 41) 
- plant and machinery (refer note 41 ) 
- others (refer note 41 ) 

30 Emplovee benefit expense• 

Particulars 

Salaries and wages 
Staff we! fare 

*Refer note 3.18 
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For the year ended 
3 I March 2024 

5,813.39 

1,134.86 
17.49 

10.2 1 
6 975.95 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

58. 11 
5.94 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2024 

I , 134.86 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

5.15 

18.86 
13.68 
37.69 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

24.4 1 
9.07 

60.38 
93.86 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

164.14 

432 07 
7.44 

129.37 
28.88 

761.90 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

5,802.23 

955 .60 
43.57 

3.29 
6 804.69 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

93.90 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

955.60 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

245 
258.56 

13.62 
6.88 

281.51 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

6.89 
3.43 
3.10 

13.42 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

25.58 

195 02 

428.85 
27. 12 

102. 15 
12.34 

791.06 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

0.75 
0.26 
1.01 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U~202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(a ll amounts in Rs. million unless otl1erwise stated) 

31 Other ex enses 
Particulars 

Legal and professional charges (refer note 41) 
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 
Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Property tax 
Marketing and advertising expenses (refer note 4 1) 
Bank charges 
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/lnvesanent properties 
Corporate Soci al Responsibility (CS R) expenditure (refer note 40) 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Auditor's remuneration (excluding Goods and service tax) 
Particulars 

As auditor 
- statutory audit 
- limited review 
- others 
Reimbursement of expenses 

32 Depreciation and amortization expense 
Particulars 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Depreciation on lnvesanent Properties 
Amortization of intangible assets 

33 Finance costs (net of capitalisation) 
Particulars 

Interest cost 
- on borrowings from banks and financial institutions 
- on debentures Seri es I 
• on loan from related parties (refer note 41) 
- others 

Other borrowing costs (refer note 41 ) 
Unwinding of discount on financial liabili ties - lease deposits 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

62.9 1 
3.77 

25.93 

282.00 
21.58 

2.18 

3.0 1 
0.60 

401.98 

For the yea r ended 
31 March 2024 

2.48 
1.29 

3.77 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

0.42 
1.034 55 

920.00 
1,954.97 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

65 1.96 
321.22 

1.656.6 1 

123.92 
2,753.7 1 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

51.19 
4.21 

34.96 
8.03 

267. 68 
1-1.39 
0.18 
0.0 1 

0.19 
380.84 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

2.48 
1.29 
040 
0.04 
4.21 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

0.32 
934 .~3 

1,0 14. 18 
1,948.93 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

784.23 
188.19 

2,228.67 
0.02 
0.05 

138. 19 
3 339.35 

Gross interest expense for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 is Rs. 3,320.80 million (31 March 2023: 3.542.02 million) and interest 
capitalised for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 is Rs. 567.09 million (3 1 March 2023 : Rs 202 .67 million). 

34 Earnings per share 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by tl1e weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profi t/ (loss) attributable to equity 
holders (after adjusting for saving in interest or di vidend expenses. net of taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equi ty shares that would be issued on conversion of all tl1e diluti ve 
potential equi ty shares into equi ty shares. 

The following reflects the profi t and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 
(i) Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share: 

Particulars 

Profit after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPS 
Weighted average number of shares* 
Earnings Per Share 
- Basic (Rupees/share) 
- Diluted (Rupees/share) 
*The Company has no potential diluti ve equity shares 
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For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

796.36 
6.515,036 

122.23 
122.23 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

255.80 
6,515.036 

39.26 
39.26 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

CIN: U64202KA 1992PTC083998 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

35 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

Particulars 

Contingent liabilities 

a) Claims agai nst the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (refer note (i)) 
b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax matters (refer note (ii )) 
c) Other matters (refer note ( iii )) 

Capital commitments 
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exec uted on capital account (net of advances) and not 
provided for 

As at 
31 March 2024 

1.62 
4.3 1 

120.73 

3,733.46 

As at 
31 March 2023 

25. 17 
4.31 

120.73 

4,289.36 

Based on management ' s best estimate, information currently available and basis expert opinion obtained by the Company, no provisions have been 
made for above claims as at 3 1 March 2024. The Company wi ll continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties and change in 
estimates, if any, in future period. 

(i) The Company was reassessed u/s. 153C read with 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 196 1 for the AY 2003-04 and 2004-05. Certain additions u/s. 68 
were made and tax demand of Rs.23.55 million and Rs. 1.62 million respectively was raised. The Company filed an appeal against the demand order 
before CIT(A) which was upheld in favour of Company quashing the demand raised. Aggrieved by the CIT(A) order, Income Tax Department filed an 
appeal before Hon'ble Delhi IT AT. For A Y 2003-04 Hon'ble Delhi IT AT has di sposed the case in favo r of the Company and resultantly the Income Tax 
Department filed an appeal before Hon'ble High Court of Delh i which was also disposed in favour of Company. For A Y 2004-05 the case is pending 
before the Hon'ble Delhi ITAT. Accordingly, the Company has disc losed Rs. 1.62 million (3 1 March 2023 Rs.25.17 million) as contingent liability. 

(ii) The Customs department issued demand notice to the Oil Suppliers of the Company with a demand of Rs4 31 mill ion fo r the period I April 20 15 
to 15 February 2016 denyi ng duty benefit on the procurement of diesel. The O il Suppl iers have subsequently raised the demand on the Company. 
Consequently, Company preferred an appeal before the SEZ commissioner which was rejected by the Commissioner and aggrieved by the order. 
Company filed a Writ Petiti on before the Hon'bl e High Court of Karnataka and obtained an Interim stay order from the Court on 9 February 20 17 
which is still in force. Accordingly, a sum ofRs.4.31 million (3 1 March 2023: Rs.4.31 million) has been di sclosed as contingent liabili ty . 

( iii ) A search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, I 96 I was conducted on I June 2022 on the Company . Further, the Company had received 
reassessment notice u/s 148 of the Income Tax Act, 196 1 fo r AY 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 for which the Company has filed returns u/s 148 of 
the Income Tax Act,196 1. The Company has rece ived notice of demand for AY 20 19-20 u/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of Rs 15.93 million for 
which Company is in process of fi ling of an appeal. 

(iv) The Company has received a demand note dated 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020 from the Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board 
for a payment of total charges amounting to Rs.138.64 million in relation to issuance of a no-objection certificate (NOC) for a proposed project 
commercial building on land parcel. The Company has fi led a writ petition before the Hi gh Court of Karnataka against the State of Karnataka. 
Bangalore Water Supply and Sewerage Board and others challenging inter-alia, the government order dated 12 February 20 16 and the demand note 
issued agai nst the Company and seeking to, inter-alia, (i) quash the demand notice dated 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020: and ( ii ) issuance of 
NOC to The Company. The Company has obtained an ad-interim di rection from the High Court of Karnataka on 17 November 2020 wherein the court 
has granted stay of demand notice on 14 August 2020 and 29 September 2020 limited to advance probable prorata charges and beneficiary charges and 
has further instructed the Company to pay the prescribed fee for issuance of NOC. Pursuant to the same, The Company has made payments on 29 
December 2020 and 30 December 2020 amounting to Rs. 17.9 1 million towards NOC charges and treated water charges and the balance amount of 
Rs.120. 73 million towards advance probable prorata charges and BCC charges which have been stayed by the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka have 
been shown as contingent liability (3 1 March 2023 : Rs. 120. 73 million) Additional ly, The Company has received the NOCs dated 30 December 2020 
fro m BWSSB with respect to the above. 
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CIN: U64202KA l992PTC083998 

Notes to the financial statements for th e year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

36 Segment reporting 
Operating Segment 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn / revenues and incur 
expenses and for which discrete financia l information is available. The operating segments' operating results are reviewed by the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker ( ' CODM' ) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The 
Company's business activities fall within one component namely. "Leasing of immovable properties" Accordingly separate disclosure as 
per the requirements of Ind AS 108 excluding Ind AS adjustmenrs, Operating Segments, are not applicable. The Company operates only in 
India, hence, geographical disclosure is not applicable. 

Information about major customers -
The revenue from the below customers constitutes more than IO percent of the Company's total revenue. 

Customer For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

Total Revenue 6,817.39 

Customer I 

Customer 2 

37 Leases 
Company as Lessor 
Operating leases 

1, 176.28 

74306 

For the year ended 
31 Ma rch 2023 

6,7 12.74 

1,0 1169 

1,009.63 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of development and leasing of office space and related interiors and accordingly has 
leased its properties under both cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreement. 

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements with its lessees. The total lease rental income recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 is Rs. 5813.39 million (3 1 March 2023 Rs.5,802.23 million) 

Future minimum lease 
The future minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate are as follows: (refer note below) 

Particulars 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than five years 

Later than five years 

38 Finance leases 

As at 
JI March 2024 

1,677.09 

1,286.72 

9,110.89 

12,074.70 

As at 
JI Ma rch 2023 

1,96 199 

2,480.68 

9,253.24 

13,695.91 

The Company has provided fit-outs to the tenants through finance leases. Total fi nance income on net investment in lease recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 is Rs. 17.49 million (3 1 March 2023 : Rs 43.57 million). The future minimum 
lease receivables in respect ofnon-cancellable lease for fit outs given on finance lease are as fo llows: 

As at JI March 2024 
Particulars 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than five years 

Later than five years 

As at 31 March 2023 
Particulars 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not later than five years 

Later than five years 
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Minimum 
lease 

payments 

37.47 

15.63 

53.10 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

I 19.81 

53.09 

172.90 

Unea rned Present value of 
finance income minimum lease 

payments 

6.06 3141 

128 14.35 

7.34 45.76 

Unearned Present va Jue of 
finance income minimum lease 

payments 

17.50 102.31 

7.33 45.76 

24.83 148.07 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 202-1 
(all amounts in Rs. million unl ess otherwise stated) 

39 No managerial remuneration is payable to directors during the year ended 3 1 Marc h 2024 (31 March 2023: Ni l) 

40 Expenditure on Corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities 
Particulars 

Where the company covered under section 135 of the companies act, the following shall 
be disclosed with regard to CSR activities -

(a) amount required to be spent by the company during the year* 

(b) amount of expenditure incurred , 
(i) Construction/acqui sition of any asset 
(ii ) On purposes other than ( i) above 

(c) shortfall at the end of the year, 

(d) total of previous years shortfall 

( e) reason for shortfall 
(f) nature of CSR activities 

(g) detai ls of related party transactions, e.g .. contribution to a trust controlled by the 
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard, 

(h) movement in provision during the year with respect to liability incurred fo r CSR 
expenditure by entering into contractual obligation 

There are no unspent amount by the company during the year ended 3 1 March 2024. 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

3 0 1 

3 01 

3.0 1 

Not applicable 
Education program and 

education support 

NIL 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

NA 

*Since the Company did not meet the criteria speci fi ed in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended 31 March 2023, 
the Company is not required to spend any amount on activities related to corporate social responsibility. 

(this space is intentionally left blank) 
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41 Related parties disclosures 

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship: 

A. Enterprises and individuals who exercise control 
Holding entity 
Manager of holding entity 

Embassy Office Parks RE IT 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited 

B. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year 

Fellow Subisidiary 

Other related parties 

C. Key management personnel 

(ii) Related party transactions: 

Particulars 

Facility rentals 
Wework India Management Private Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Facility maintenance income 
Wework India Management Private Lim ited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Interest income 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 
Axis Bank Limited 

Property management fees 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited 

Lounge Hospitality LLP 

Power and fuel 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 

Mac Charles India Limited 

Interest expenses (including capitalized) 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Lim ited 

Amount receivable on behalf of 
VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 

Investment in fi xed deposits 
Axis Bank Limited 

Redemption of fixed deposits 
Axis Bank Limited 

Corporate guarantee given 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Corporate guarantee taken 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 

Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 

VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facili ty Management Private Limited 
Wework India Management Private Limited 
Lounge Hospi tali ty LLF 
Mac Charles India Limited 
Next Level Experi ences LLF 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Miracle Coatings Private Limited (Formerly known Bangalore Paints 
Babbler Marketing Private Limited 
Embassy Real Estate and Development Services Private Limited 
Axis Bank Limited 
Global Facade Solutions 

Dire!'lors 
Rajan Munirathinam Ganesan (upto 22 August 2022) 
Raghu Sapra 
Vikaash Khdloya (upto 27 April 2023) 
Jitendra Mohandas Virwani (w.e. f 30 August 2022) 
Donnie Dominic George (w.e.f 11 October 2022 ) 
Aravind Maiya (w.e. f28 April 2023) 
Company Secretary 
Gautham Nambiar (w.e.f 30 August 2022) 

(There are no transactions with key managerial personnel) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 
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133.54 
107.64 

31.02 
19.77 

2.74 

174.14 
( 1000) 

344.70 

96.88 

1,690.51 
11 4.13 

227.95 

2 10. 19 

10,000.00 

500.00 

133.54 
107.48 

26.97 
19.77 

258.56 

185.02 

IOOO 

411.74 

69.47 

2.23 1.41 
46.16 

0.30 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

41 Related parties disclosures (continued) 
(ii) Related party transactions: (continued) 

Particulars 

Project cost incurred (capitalised) 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 
Miracle Coatings Pri vate Limited 
Babbler Marketing Private Limited 
Global Facade Solutions 

Reimbursement of expenses - Legal and Professional fees 
Embassy Office Parks RE IT 
Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facili ty Management Private Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses - Advertisement 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Reimbursement of expenses 
Sarla lnfrastrncture Private Limited 

Marketing and advertising expenses 
Next Level Experiences LL P 

Common area maintenance 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 
Technique Control Facility Management Pri vate Limited 

Repairs and maintenance - building 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 

Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Lounge Hospitali ty LLP 

Repairs and maintenance - Others 
Embassy Services Pri vate Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
1 ext Level Experiences LLP 
Lounge Hospitality LLP 

Bank Charges 
Axis Bank Limited 

Bank guarantee commission Paid 
Umbel Properties Private Limited 

Bank guarantee commission received 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Reimbursement of expenses - Property Tax 
Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Loans repayment received 
Sarla lnfrastrncture Private Limited 

Long term borrowings availed 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Short term borrowings availed 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Long term borrowings repaid 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 
Axis Bank Limited 

Short term borrowings repaid 
Embassy Office Parks REIT* 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2024 

151.60 
25.81 

0.07 
5.60 
4.39 
6.15 

9.4 1 

0.26 
3.24 

11.68 

4.28 

9.90 

109.84 
( 124 1) 
161.93 

0.20 

0.74 

0.63 
204 
0.28 
0.03 

2.00 

2,292.63 
109.40 

28,180.44 

3,504.54 
1,437.37 

28, 180.44 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

76.59 
10.3 1 
3.81 
0. 16 
0.27 
0. 17 

21.38 
1.86 

0.64 

14.39 

102.33 

148.65 

0.87 
0.27 

1. 82 
0.26 

0.02 
0. I 7 

0.05 

0.05 

28.62 

2,500.00 

1.1 92.50 
1,970.60 

1,790.97 

4,373.96 
200.00 

4,220.97 

• Includes repayment of long term loan converted to short tenn loan during the year ended 31 March 2024 of Rs. NIL (3 1 March 2023 : Rs.2,430 
million). 
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41 Related parties disclosures (continued) 
(iii) Amounts outstanding as at the balance sheet date: 

Particulars 

Other non-current assets - Capital advance 
Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 

Sarla Infrastructure Private Limited 

Miracle Coatings Pri vate Limited 

Trade receivables 
VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Other Current assets - Security deposits 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 

Fixed deposits with banks (including interest accrude) 
Axis Bank Limited 

Non-current borrowings 
Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Axis Bank Limited 

Current borrowings 
Axis Bank Limited 

Trade payables 
Lounge Hospitali ty LLP 

Embassy Real Estate and Development Services Pri vate Limited 

Embassy Services Private Limited 

Mac Charles Indi a Limited 

Embassy Enerb'Y Pri vate Limited 

Embassy Office Park Management Services Private Limited 

Embassy Office Parks REIT 

Next Level Experiences LLP 

VTV Infrastructure Management Private Limited 

Capital creditors 
Embassy Property Developments Pri vate Limited 
Miracle Coatings Private Limited 
Babbler Marketing Private Limited 
Global Facade Soluti ons 
Embassy Services Pri vate Limited 

Other liabilities 
Embassy Office Park Management Services Pri vate Limited 

Low1ge Hospitality LLP 
Embassy Services Private Limited 
Technique Control Facility Management Private Limited 
Embassy Energy Private Limited 
Mac Charles India Limited 
Next Level Experiences LLP 

Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 
Techn ique Control Faci li ty Management Private Li mited 
Embassy Services Private Limited 

Corporate guarantee gh'en 
Embassy Office Parks REIT ( ote 8 ) 

Corporate guarantee taken 
Umbel Properties Pri vate Limited (Note A) 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2.78 

4 .28 

10.08 

0.30 

105.00 

20.44 

12,198.94 

537.63 

105.00 

7.57 
5.19 

0.17 

9.05 

8.53 

0.57 

0.60 
136 
3.36 
0.16 
2.77 

1.87 

0. 17 
0.2 1 

30.75 
9.64 
1 81 

36.42 
18.33 

10,000.00 

800.00 

As at 
3 I March 2023 

I 1.68 

0.30 
0.06 

105.00 

13.4 10.85 

1,85341 

117.19 

19.99 

5. 19 

19.20 
5.30 

42.59 

6.36 

0.17 

0.57 

29.69 
1.20 
0.27 

9.76 

12.05 

9.00 

13.67 
38.6 1 

26.000.00 

300.00 

Note A: The Company has availed bank overdraft , bank guarantee and letter of credit facility from a bank amounting to Rs.800 million (3 1 March 
2023: Rs.300 million). In tl1is regard, Umbel Properties Private Limited, a fell ow subsidiary. has given corporate guarantee to bank al ong with 
charge on certain assets of Umbel Properties Private Limited. 

Note B . The Company has provided a corporate guarantee to its holding enti ty, namely Embassy offi ce parks REIT amounting to Rs.10,000 
million for the on-convertible debentures availed by the holding entity. The previously provided corporate guarantee amounting to Rs.26,000 to 
Embassy office parks REIT was closed during the year ended 3 1 March 2024. 

Note C: Certain immovable properties of the Company have been gi ven as a security to Canara bank for borrowing availed by Quadron Business 
Parks Private limited wherein, as per the tenns of sanction, the Company is also a co-borrower. 
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42 Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management 

A. The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below: 

Particulars 

Financial assets : measured at amortised cost. 
Fixed deposits with banks 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade receivables 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial liabilities: measured at amortised cost. 
Borrowings - floating rates 
Borrowings - fixed rates - NCO 
Borrowings - fixed rates 
Trade payables 
Lease deposits 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

Carrying value Fair value 

As at As at As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

73 .99 50.89 

0.06 130.68 
31.47 32.05 

1.424.16 1,509.87 
1,529.68 1,723.49 -

15,342.20 11 ,906.34 
4.945 IO 4,940.92 4.945 IO 4.940 92 

12. 198 94 I 3,410.85 
54.0 1 128. 13 

3,492.96 3,570.25 
790.80 699.62 

36,824.01 34,656, 11 4,945.10 4,940,92 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits, trade recei vables, borrowings, lease deposits, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities 
approximate their carrying amounts and hence the same has not been disclosed in the table above. 

8. Measurement of fair values 
The section explains the judgment and estimates made in detern1ining tl1e fai r values oftl1e financial instruments that are : 
a) reco&mised and measured at fair value 
b) measured at amonised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classi fied its financial instruments into tl1e three 
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below: 

Le,•el I: Level I hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are 
traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reponing period. The mutual fund s are valued using the closing NAV. 

Level 2: TI1e fair value of financia l instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example. traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possibl e on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable. the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

Transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 
There were no transfers between Level I, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

Detennination of fair values: 
Fair val ues of fin ancial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the foll owing methods. When 
applicable. funher information about tl1e assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability . 

i) The fair values ofother current financi al assets and financi al liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values. 
ii ) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cash fl ows discounted at the current market 
rate. The fair value has been categorised as Level 3 Fair Value. 

C. Financial risk management 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

- credit risk (refer note ii below ) 
- liquidity risk (refer note iii below) 

- market risk (refer note iv below) 

(i) Risk management framework 
The Company 's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's ri sk management fram ework. The 
Company' s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to 
monitor ri sks and adherence to limits. Ri sk management polici es and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's 

The Company's Board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and revi ews 
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to tl1e ri sks faced by tl1e Company . The Board of directors is assisted in its oversight role by internal 
audit. Internal audit undenakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reponed to tl1e Board of 
directors. 
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.n Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financial risk management (continued) 

(ii) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of tenants or counterparties oftl1e Company, to settle its financial and contractual obligations, 
as and when they fall due. 
The Company has an established process to evaluate the creditwortl1iness of its tenants and prospective tenants to minimize potential credit risk. Credit 
evaluations are performed by the Company before lease agreements are entered into with prospecti ve tenants. Security in the fo nn of bankers' guarantees. 
corporate guarantees or cash security deposits are obtained upon the commencement of the lease. 

The Company establishes an allowance account for impainnent that represents its estimate of losses in respect of trade and other receivabl es. The main 
component of this all owance is estimated losses tl1at relate to specific tenants or counterparties. 

The allowance account is used to provide for impainnent losses. Subsequently when the company is sati sfied that no recovery of such losses is possible. the 
financia l asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance account is then written off against tl1e carrying amount of the impaired 

Cash at bank and fixed deposits are placed with scheduled banks which are reb•ulated and have low or no ri sk. 
As at the reporting date, there is no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of each 
financial asset on the Balance Sheet. 
At 31 March 2024. the carrying amount of the Company's most significant customer is Rs 16.05 million (3 1 March 2023: Rs 20.28 million) 

a) Trade Receivables: 
The Company's exposure to credit ri sk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, Management also considers the factors 
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate. 

Expected credit loss (£Cl) assessment for corporate rnstomers as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 
The Company allocates each exposure to a credit ri sk grade based on a variety of data that is detennined to be predicti ve of the risk of loss (including but not 
limited to past payment history, security by way of deposits, external ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash fl ow projections and 
avai lable press infonnation about customers) and applying experienced credit judgement. 
The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade recei vables from individual customers. 

Based on lhe industry practices and tl1e business environment in which the entity operates. management considers that lhe trade receivables are credit impaired if 
the payments are more than 180 days past due. 

The foll owing table provides agei ng of trade receivables along with information about tl1e exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivabl es: 

As at 31 March 2024 
Particulars 

(i) Undi sputed Trade receivables -
considered good 
(ii ) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in 

(i ii ) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in 

( vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Gross receivables 
Provision amount 
Net carrving amount 

Not due 
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments 

Less than 6 6 months - I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than Total 
months I year 3 ears 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 31.47 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 31.47 

28.63 1.26 0.96 0.30 0.32 31.47 
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42 Financia l instruments- fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 

C. Financial risk management (continued ) 

As at 31 March 2023 

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments 

(i) Undisputed Trade recei vables -
considered good 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have si!p1ificant increase in 

(iii ) Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good 
(v) Di sputed Trade Receivables -
which have sib'llificant increase in 
(vi ) Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired 
Gross receiva bles 
Provision amount 
Net carrving amount 

Not due Less than 6 
months 

28.40 

28.40 

28.40 

6 months -
'ear 

1.86 

1.86 

1.86 

b) Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances and fixed deposits with banks): 

I - 2 years 

0.76 

0.76 

0.76 

2-3 years 

1.03 

1.03 

1.03 

More than 
3 vears 

Total 

32.05 

32.05 

32.05 

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs.0.06 million (3 1 March 2023: Rs. 130.68 mil lion) and fi xed deposits with bank of Rs.73 .99 million (31 
March 2023 : Rs.50. 89 mill ion)The cash and cash equi valents and fixed deposits with bank are mainly held with scheduled banks. The Company considers that 
its cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with bank have low credit ri sk based on the external credit ratings of counterparti es. 

c) Security deposits (classified as other financial assets): 

Expected credit loss for loan s and security deposits is as follows: 

Particulars Period ended Estimated gross Expected Expected credit Carrying 
carrying amount probability of losses amount, net of 

default impai rment 
orovision 

As at 252.98 252.98 

Risk same since initial 3 I March 2024 
Loss at 12 months ECL 

recognition As at 268.74 268.74 
3 I March 2023 

d) Other financial assets: 

The Company considers that its other financi al assets which mainly represents unbilled revenue with its tenants and have low credit risk based on its nature and 
other securi ty available. 

(i ii) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity ri sk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabili ties that are settled by deli vering 
cash or another financial asset. the Company's approach to manab,ing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suffici ent liquidi ty to meet its 
liabi lities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation . 
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company' s liquidity position and cash and cash equi valents on the basis of expected cash fl ows. This is generally 
carried out by the Management of the Company in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. In addi tion. the Company's liquidi ty management 
policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these. monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal 
and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 
The table below details the Company's remaining contracrual marurity for its non-derivative fi nancial liabilities. The contracrual cash fl ows refl ect the 
undi scounted cash flows of financ ial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. 
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42 
C. 

Financial instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
Financial risk management (continued) 

Contractual Cashflows 
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Less than I year 1-3 years 3-5 yea rs More than 5 Total 

Amount as at years 
31 March 2024 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Borrowings< 11 32,486.24 1,709.28 2 1, 100.07 12, 198 .94 35.008.29 

Trade payables 54.0 1 54 0 1 54.0 1 

Lease deposi ts m 3,492.96 3,108.25 425.39 9609 3,629.73 

Other financial liabilities 790.80 767.41 23 .39 790.80 
36 824.01 5 638.95 21 548.85 96.09 12 198.94 39,482.83 

As at 3 I March 2023 Carrying Less than I year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Total 
Amount as at years 

31 March 2023 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Borrowings < 11 30.258. 11 1,358.46 18,654.57 13,4 I 0.85 33,423.88 

Trade payables 128 .13 128.13 128 .13 

Lease deposits m 3,570.25 2,7 1463 1,019 05 72.95 3.806 63 

Other financial liabilities 699.62 654.24 45 .38 699.62 
34 656.11 4 855.46 19 719.00 72.95 13 410.85 38 058.26 

( I ) As at 3 1 March 2024. includes future cash outflow toward estimated interest on borrowings except short term borrow ings and borrowings from holding 
entity, wherein the principal amount has been considered. 
(2) The lease deposit carrying amount is reflected at discounted value and tl1e cash fl ows is reflected at undiscounted cash fl ows. 

Following table provides detailed ageing for trade payables: 
As at 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

(i)MSME 
(ii ) Others 
(iii) Di sputed dues - MSME 
(iv)Dis uted dues - Others 
Net carrying amount 

As at 31 March 2023 

Particulars 

(i)MSME 
(ii ) Others 

(iii ) Disputed dues - MSME 
(iv)Di s uted dues - Others 
Net carrying amount 

Financing arrangement 

Not due 

18.25 

18.25 

Not due 

15.47 

15.47 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 
Less than I year I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 

3 years 

20.77 4.90 7.58 2.51 

20.77 4.90 7.58 2.51 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments 
Less than I year I - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 

3 vears 

100.36 I 1.70 0.60 

100.36 11.70 0.60 

Total 

18.25 
35.76 

54,01 

Total 

15.47 
11 2.66 

128.13 

The Company had Rs. 2,850 million (31 March 2023: Rs.1.059.40 million) undrawn borrowing faci lities from banks at the end of the reporting year. 

(iv) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates. which will affect the Company' s income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures wi thin acceptable parameters, while 

a) Currency risk 
The following table analyses the fore ign currency risk from monetary assets and liabilities as at year ended 3 1 March 2024: Rs in million 
Particulars USD Total 
Other financial liabilities 7.39 7.39 

The foll owing table analyses tl1e fore ign currency ri sk from monetary assets and liabilities as at year ended 31 March 2023: Rs in million 
Particulars USD Total 
Other financial liabilities 0.68 0.68 
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42 Financia l instruments - fair value measurement and risk management (continued) 
C. Financial risk management (continued) 

Foreign currency sensitivity 
The foll owing tables demonstrate the sensiti vity to a reasonably possible change in USO exchange rates. witl1 all od1er variables held constant. TI1e impact on the 
Company"s profit before tax and equity is due to changes in the fa ir value of monetary assets and liabili ties. 

Particulars Profit or loss 
Change in USO rate +5% I -5% 

Otl1er financi al liabilities as at 31 March 2024 (037) 1 0.37 

Other financi al liabilities as at 3 1 March 2023 (0.03) 1 0.03 

The Company does not have any w1hedged foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2024 except for those di sclosed above. 

b) Interest rate risk 

Equity, net of tax 

+ 5% I -5% 
(026) 1 0.26 

(002)1 0.02 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's 
exposure to the ri sk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to its long-tenn debt obligati ons wid1 fl oating interest rates. 

c) Exposure to interest rate risk: 
The Company's main interest rate risk ari ses from long-tem1 borrowings with variabl e rates, which expose the Company to cash now interest rate risk. 
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as foll ows: 

Particulars 

Fixed-rate instruments: 
Fmancia/ assels 

Fixed deposits with banks 
Securi ty Deposit 

Financial l,ab,lir,es 
Borrowings 

Fixed instruments total 

Variable-rate instruments : 
Fmanc,a/ /,ab1/111es 
Borrowings (current and non-current ) 
Variable rate instruments exposed to interest rate risks total 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

73 .99 50.89 
252.98 268.74 
326.97 319.63 

(17,144 04) (18.35 1. 77) 

(17,144.04) (18,351.77) 

(16,817.07) (18,032.14) 

(15,342 20) ( 11 ,906.34) 
(15,342.20) (11,906.34) 

The Company does not account for any fi xed-rate financi al assets or financ ial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore. a change in interest rates at 
the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 

The fair value interest rate risk is the ri sk o f fluctuati ons in the value of a financial instmment as a result of fluctuati ons in the market interest rate. The Company 
is exposed to fair value interest rate risk as a result of floating rate borrowings from banks and financial institutions. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
A reasonably possible change of I% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown 
below. Thi s analysis asswnes that all other variables, remain constant. 

Particulars Profit or loss Equity net of tax 

+1% -1 % +1% -1 % 

Loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2024 74 .38 (74 38) 52.72 (52 .72) 

Loans and borrowings as at 3 1 March 2023 71.78 (71.78 ) 50.88 (50 88 ) 

d) Price risk: 
Price ri sk is the ri sk of flucnrntions in the value of assets and liabilities as a result of changes in market prices of investments The company has no material 

exposure to equity securities price risk and is not exposed to commodity ri sk. The company's exposure to price ri sk arises from investments held by the 
company in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through statement of profit or loss. The fai r value of these in vestments is marked to an 
active market. The financial assets carried al fair value by the company are mainly investm ents in liquid and overnight debt mutual funds and accordingly no 
material volatility is expected. 
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43 Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Com pany's capital management, capital includes issued equi ty capital, securit ies premi um and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the eq uity share holders of the company. The primary objecti ve of the Company's capita l manage ment is to maximise the shareholder 
value. 

The Company's poli cy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 

development of the business. The Company's capital structure mai nl y constitutes debt. The projects are initia ll y funded through construction 
fi nancing arrangements. On completion, these loans are restructured into lease-rental discount ing arrangements. The Company' s capita l structure is 

influenced by the changes in reg ulatory framework , government poli cies, avail able options of fi nanci ng and the impact of the same on the li quidity 
position. 

The Company monitors capital using a rat io of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For thi s purpose, Adjusted net debt is Long-terrn borrowi ngs + 
Shon - term borrowings less Cash and cash equi valents (including book ove rdraft). Adjusted equity comprises all components of equi ty . 

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was as follows: 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Total debt 32,486.24 30,258. 11 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) 0.06 130.68 

Adjusted net debt 32,486.18 30,127.43 

Total eq ui ty ( 1.949 77) (2,746. 13 ) 

Adjusted eguitv (1 ,949.77) (2,746.13) 

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (16.66) (10.97) 
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44 Income tax 

(a) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss: 

Particulars 

Current tax Charge: 
Current year 

Deferred Tax Charge 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Minimum alternate tax entitlement 

Others 

Tax expense 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit before tax 

Enacted tax rate applicable to tl1e company 
Income tax on accounting profits 

Reconciliation items 
Tax adjustment of prior years 
Others 
Tax expense at effective income tax rate 

(c) Refer note 9 for recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

(d) Unrecognised deferred tax assets: 
The Company does not have any unrecognised deferred tax assets 

45 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

For the year ended 
31 March 202-1 

106.27 

438.58 

( 106 27) 

438.58 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

1.234.94 

34.94% 
431.49 

7.55 
(046) 

438.58 

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financin g activities: 

Particulars 

Opening financial liability 

Cash nows: 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings (net off issue expenses) 

Repayment of borrowings 

Interest paid 

Non-cash adjustments: 
Capitalised borrowing cost 

Interest expense 

Balance at the end of the year 
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As at 
31 March 2024 

30,258.10 

35,335.79 

(33.129.85) 

(3. 166.80) 

559.2 1 

2,629.79 

32,486.24 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2023 

64.00 

318.63 

382.63 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

638.43 

34.94% 
223.07 

157.62 
1.94 

382.63 

As at 
31 March 2023 

34, 167.42 

20,079.95 

(23,989 27) 

(3,403.83) 

202.67 

3,20 1.1 6 

30,258.IO 



Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
CIN: U64202KAl992PTC083998 
Notes to the financia l statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(all am ounts in Rs. million unless otherwi se stated ) 

46 Ratio Analysis and its elements "' 

Particulars 

Current ratio 

Current ratio (adjusted) 

Debt-equity ratio 

Debt service coverage ratio 

Return on equity ratio 

Trade receivables turnover ratio 

Trade payable turnover ratio 

Net capital turnover ratio 

Net profit ratio 

Return on capital employed 

Return on invesunent 

Numerator 

Current Assets 

Current Assets 

Total Debt 

Earnings before Finance costs, Depreciation, 
Amrn1isation and Tax 

Net Profits after taxes 

Net credit sales = Revenue from operations 

Total expenses 

Net sales = Revenue from operations 

Net Profit 

Earnings before interest and taxes 

Interest on fixed deposits + Profit on sale of 
mutual fund s + Dividend from mutual fund s 

Denominator 

Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities - Current portion of lease deposit and deferred 
lease rentals 

Shareholder' s Equity 

Finance cost (net of capitalisation and excluding interest on lease 
deposit) + Principal repayments made during the period to the 
extent not refinanced 

Average Shareholder' s Equity 

Average Trade Receivable 

Average trade payables 

Average Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities 

Net sales = Revenue from operations 
Capital Employed = Tan gible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred 
Tax liability 

Weighted average in vesunents in mutual fund s + Weighted 
average fi xed deposits with banks 

The Company has not disclosed inventory turnover ratio since the Company's business does not require maintenance of in ventories. 
• • Based on the requirements of Schedule Ill 

• Explanation given for change in the ratios which are more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 

Notes: 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.16 0.18 

0.56 0.6 1 

( 16.66 ) ( I 1.02) 

2.26 1.82 

(33.92%) (8 90%) 

2 19.64 24 3.89 

12.78 11 .27 

(2. 01 I (2.59) 

11 .42% 3.76% 

13 .75°0 l 5.87°~ 

8.95~o 5.33% 

(i) Increase in profits during tl,e year 3 1 March 2024 as compared to 31 March 2023 has resulted in vari ance in debt equity rati o, return on equity ration and net profit ratio. 

0
/41 Variance 

( 14%) 

(9° 0) 

Reason for 
variance '"' 

51 % Refer note ( i / below 

24°0 

281 °0 Refernote(i) below 

( 10%) 

13% 
(22%) 

204 ° o Refer note ( i) below 
( 13%) 

68~ . Reier note (ii ) below 

(ii) Increase in interest on fixed deposits and profit 0 11 sale of mutual funds for tl1e year ended 31 March 2024 as compared to year ended 31 March 2023 has resulted in improvement in return on in vestment ratio. 

47 The Company does not have any transaction to report against the utilisation of borrowed fonds and securities premium as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule Ill. 

48 The Company has used accounting software for maintainin g its books of account which has a feature of recording aud it trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded m the 
software. Further, there are no instance of.mdit trail feature being tampered witl1 . 

/vr S R Batliboi & Associates LLP 

Membership No.: 209567 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

01049W/E300004 

fo r and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

V s Telecom Private Limited 

DI N: 00027674 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 23 April 2024 

Page 44 

- ~ 1. \~ r 
DIN: 0848 I 898 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date : 23 April 2024 

j 
I 

Ga ~ ham Nambiar-
( 'umpany Secretw:\I 

Membership 1o: F1 2376 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date · 23 April 2024 



 

Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
Registered Office: Royal Oaks, Embassy GolfLinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bangalore - 560 071, Karnataka, India. 
Tel: +91 80 4722 2222 | F: +91 80 4722 2223  
E: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com |  W: https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl  | CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

BOARD’S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your directors present the Thirty-Second Annual Report of Vikas Telecom Private Limited (“Company”) 
along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with the previous year figures 
on standalone basis are given hereunder: 

    (₹ in million)  

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Revenue from operations 6975.95 6,804.69 

Add: Interest income 37.69 281.51 

Add: Other income 93.86 13.42 

Less: Operating expenses 761.90 791.06 

Less: Other expenses 401.98 381.85 

Earnings before finance cost, depreciation, 
amortization and tax (‘EBITDA’) 

5943.62 5,926.71 

Less: Finance cost, depreciation and 
amortization 

4708.68 5,288.28 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 1234.94 638.43 

Less: Taxes (current and deferred) 438.58 382.63 

Profit / (Loss) for the year 796.36 255.80 

Other comprehensive income - - 

Total comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the 
year 

796.36 255.80 

Note: Previous Year figures have been rearranged / regrouped, wherever necessary. 

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND REVIEW OF OPERATIONS: 

The Company recorded operating revenues of ₹6975.95 million in the Financial Year 2023-24, as 
compared to ₹6,804.69 million in the Financial Year 2022-23; also, earnings before finance cost, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization i.e., EBITDA increased to ₹5943.62 million in the Financial Year 2023-
24, as compared to ₹5,926.71 million in the Financial Year 2022-23. Net profit after tax for the Financial 
Year 2023-24 is ₹796.36 million as against Net profit of ₹255.80 million in the Financial Year 2022-23. 
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3. DIVIDEND: 

In view of conserving the resources of the Company, the Board does not recommend payment of any 
dividend for the year under review. 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

During the year under review, the Company has transferred an amount of ₹250.80 million to the 
Debenture Redemption reserve. 

5. DEPOSITS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and 
consequently, there are no outstanding deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(hereinafter referred to as “Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended). 

Further, the Company is annually filing with the Registrar of Companies requisite return in e-form DPT-
3 for submitting the details of outstanding receipts of money/ loan by the Company, which are not 
considered as deposits under Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

6. SHARE CAPITAL: 

As on March 31, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at ₹640.50 million (Indian 
Rupees Six Hundred Forty million Five Hundred Thousand Only) divided into 64,000,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each and 50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ₹10/- 
(Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. During the year, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital 
of the Company. 

As on March 31, 2024, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at 
₹65.15 million (Indian Rupees Sixty-Five million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Only) divided into 
6,515,036 Equity Shares of ₹10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. During the year, there was no 
change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company. 

Also, during the year, there was no change in the Share Capital on account of Buy-Back of Securities, 
issuance of Sweat Equity or Bonus Shares, etc.  

7. POLICIES: 

The following policies have been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company including, as 
approved and adopted by Embassy Office Parks Management Services Private Limited (acting as the 
Manager to Embassy Office Parks REIT (“Embassy REIT”)), in its capacity as the Special Purpose 
Vehicle (“SPV”) of Embassy REIT.  

As a part of the overall governance framework, the Board of Directors reviews all the policies once a 
year. 

i. Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Senior Management and other employees 

The “Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Senior Management and other employees” 
demonstrates the group’s overall commitment to conduct its affairs in fair, diligent and ethical 
manner, within the scope or authority conferred upon them and in accordance with the laws, 
rules and regulations applicable to the Company.  
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This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

ii. Borrowing Policy 

The Borrowing Policy aims at outlining the process for borrowing monies to meet any liabilities, 
undertaking any investments/acquisitions or meet any other obligations of the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

iii. Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy 

The Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy aims to ensure continuity of critical 
business processes at an acceptable level and limit the impact of the disaster on people, 
processes and infrastructure. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

iv. Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”) Policy and Anti-Bribery and Corruption (“ABC”) Policy 

The AML Policy aims to establish the controls around prevention of money laundering in the 
Company and is in accordance with the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. 

The ABC Policy aims at conducting all aspects of the Company’s business with the highest legal 
and ethical standards and expects all persons acting on its behalf to uphold this commitment.  

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

v. Code on unpublished price sensitive information and dealing in securities of Vikas 
Telecom Private Limited and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure in 
respect of Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

This Code aims to outline the process and procedures for dissemination of information and 
disclosures in relation to the Company and ensure that the Company complies with the 
applicable laws, including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015, and to the extent applicable or such other laws, regulations, rules 
or guidelines prohibiting insider trading and governing disclosure of material, unpublished price 
sensitive information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

vi. Document Archival Policy 

The Document Archival Policy aims to provide a comprehensive policy on the preservation and 
conservation of the records and documents, both Physical and Electronic, of the Company and 
aims at identifying, classifying, storing, securing, retrieving, tracking and destroying or 
permanently preserving records. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 
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vii. Whistle Blower Policy 

The Whistle Blower Policy has been adopted with a view to providing a mechanism for the 
Directors of the Company to report their genuine concerns or grievances that could be a matter 
of serious concern for the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

viii. Risk Management Policy 

The Risk Management Policy is framed in line with the provisions of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and sets out the responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Company and other persons 
working for and on behalf of the Company in relation to identifying, assessing and remediating 
the risks posed to the Company. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

ix. Policy on Related Party Transactions 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions is adopted to regulate the transactions of the 
Company with its related parties based on the laws and regulations applicable and to ensure 
proper approval, supervision and reporting of the transactions between the Company and its 
related parties. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

x. Distribution Policy 

The Distribution Policy is framed in line with the requirement of Regulation 18 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 and aims to provide 
a comprehensive policy on the conditions with regard to the distributions made by Embassy 
REIT based on the cash flows received from the HoldCo/SPVs and the distributions to be made 
by Holdco/ SPVs to Embassy REIT. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xi. Short-term Investment Policy 

The Short-term Investment Policy provides a framework for investing surplus funds of the 
Company in instruments whose tenure is less than one year in order to earn returns, subject to 
the investment limits specified in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate 
Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 (‘REIT Regulations’) and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act.  

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 
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xii. Data Privacy Policy 

Data Privacy Policy provides a framework for the management of personal data and defines a 
set of minimum requirements with which the Company must comply to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, availability, and authenticity of the information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xiii. Fraud Prevention Policy 

The Fraud Prevention Policy aims in promoting an ethical and fraud-free environment by 
creating awareness within the Company of their responsibilities for prevention, detection and 
reporting of fraud and for establishing controls and procedures for identification, prevention and 
detection of fraud. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xiv. Cyber Security Policy 

This Cyber Security Policy provides a framework and a set of guidelines for acceptable practices 
and procedures, that minimize the vulnerability of company data, networks and infrastructures 
to accidental or malicious attacks, with which the stakeholders must comply to protect the 
confidentiality, integrity, availability, and authenticity of the information. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

xv. Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Board has adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”), copy of which has 
been posted on the website of the Company at www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/.  

The brief salient features of the CSR Policy of the Company are- 

(i) Outline projects, programs and activities to be undertaken by the Company;  

(ii) Specify the modalities of execution of such projects, programs and activities;  

(iii) Monitor the process to be followed for such projects, programs and activities;  

(iv) Directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its work 
centers and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic 
well-being of the local populace; and  

(v) Generate community goodwill for the Company and help reinforce a positive and socially 
responsible image, through our CSR Activities. 

The Company is committed to economic, environmental and social well-being of communities 
and would consider participating in appropriate CSR initiatives in the coming year(s). 

The detailed CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

Further, the provisions of CSR were applicable to the Company during the year 2023-24. 

mailto:secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/
http://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/


 

Vikas Telecom Private Limited 
Registered Office: Royal Oaks, Embassy GolfLinks Business Park, Off Intermediate Ring Road, Bangalore - 560 071, Karnataka, India. 
Tel: +91 80 4722 2222 | F: +91 80 4722 2223  
E: secretarial@embassyofficeparks.com |  W: https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl  | CIN: U64202KA1992PTC083998 

 
A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and the 
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure 
II of this Report as per the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy), Rules 2014. 

xvi. Policy for processing and claiming of unclaimed amount: 

This Policy has been formulated to prescribe the framework for dealing with unclaimed amounts 
lying with the Company and the manner of claiming such amounts by the holders of non-
convertible securities of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the circular 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-RAC-1/P/CIR/2023/176 dated November 08, 2023, issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
 
This Policy can be accessed on the website of the company at 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 

8. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:  

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.  

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

During the financial year under review, the Company has not entered into transactions with the related 
part(ies), except on arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Furthermore, none of the 
related party transactions entered during the financial year were material in nature. The details of the 
related party transactions are set out in the notes to the Financial Statements. Additionally, Form-AOC 
2, is set out as Annexure I, to this report. 

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

The disclosure of particulars of loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security provided is 
not applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged in providing infrastructure facilities.  

11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The information under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2024, is as mentioned below: 
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

S. No. Particulars Remarks 

1. The efforts made towards technology 
absorption 

The Company is conscious towards 
technology absorption and adequate 
measures have been taken for the same, 
namely; 

a. Created and launched the Embassy 
Infinity software tool to make daily 
operations smoother and improve 
energy data collection and monitoring. 
 

b. Introduced IoT-based online monitoring 
to better manage the operations of the 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

S. No. Particulars Remarks 

1. The steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy 

Throughout the year, the Company has been 
committed to energy conservation efforts, 
implementing various measures aimed at reducing 
environmental footprint namely: 

a. Installed a system to collect rainwater from the 
roof to help cool HVAC systems, making them 
work more efficiently. 
 

b. Optimized HVAC system settings to match the 
outside temperature, ensuring they run efficiently. 

 
c. Enhanced the performance of three large cooling 

towers by upgrading their components. 

2. The steps taken by the 
Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy 

a. Made the best use of green energy by 
incorporating solar power from the Embassy-
Energy Private Limited, significantly boosting our 
renewable energy use. 
 

b. Increased the capacity of our system by adding 
more solar panels on the rooftop, which now 
contributes a small but important part of our total 
energy production. 

3. The capital investment on 
energy conservation 
equipments. 

₹1.9 million 
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sewage treatment plant. 
 

c. Enhanced the filtration systems in both 
sewage treatment plants and water 
treatment plants by upgrading to disc 
and screen filters for better efficiency. 

2. The benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution 

The Company has achieved a reduction in 
overall cost and has seen performance 
improvement.  

3. In case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three years 
reckoned from the beginning of the 
Financial Year) 

a. The details of technology imported; 

b. The year of import; 

c. Whether the technology been fully 
absorbed; 

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, and 
the reasons thereof 

During the year, the company has not 
imported any technology. 

4. The expenditure incurred on Research 
and Development 

Nil 

 

 C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

    Sr. No. Particulars Remarks 

1. The Foreign Exchange earned in terms 

of actual inflows during the year 

FY 2023-24: NIL 

FY 2022-23: NIL 

2. The Foreign Exchange Outgo during 

the year in terms of actual outflows 

FY 2023-24: ₹92.64 million  

FY 2022-23: ₹55.74 million 
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12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY: 

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
comprised of the following Directors: 

Name  DIN/ Membership No. Designation 

Mr. Jitendra Mohandas Virwani 00027674 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Aravind Maiya 08481898 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Raghu Sapra 08455937 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Donnie Dominic George 09762419 Nominee Director* 

Mr. Gautham Nambiar F12376 Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

*Appointed as a Nominee of Embassy REIT (acting through its Manager, Embassy Office Parks 
Management Services Private Limited) pursuant to the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Real 
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. 

During the year under review, Mr. Vikaash Khdloya (DIN: 02042443) resigned from the position of 
Nominee Director with effect from close of business on April 27, 2023.  

Further, Mr. Aravind Maiya (08481898) was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with 
effect from April 28, 2023 and held office up to the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on July 07, 2023, where he was regularized as a Nominee Director by the 
shareholders of the Company. Further, Mr. Jitendra Virwani (DIN: 00027674) and Mr. Donnie 
Dominic George (DIN: 09762419) were also regularized as Nominee Directors in the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on July 07, 2023. 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per the applicable provisions of the Act. 

13. BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

A. Board Meetings: 

Details of the Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2023-24 as required under 
Section 134(3)(b) and in terms of Section 173 of the Act read with Secretarial Standard – I on 
Board Meetings issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India are as under: 

First Quarter 
(April to June) 

Second Quarter 
(July to Sept) 

Third Quarter 
(Oct to Dec) 

Fourth Quarter 
(Jan to March) 

Total 
Board 
Meetings 
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04 (four) 

April 24, 2023 

April 27, 2023 

June 12, 2023 

June 19, 2023 

04 (four) 

July 05, 2023 

July 24, 2023 

August 31, 2023 

September 27, 2023 

03 (three) 

October 24, 2023 

October 27, 2023 

December 08, 2023 

 

04 (four) 

January 03, 2024 

January 11, 2024 

January 31, 2024 

February 16, 2024 

 

15 

(Fifteen) 

 
B. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR”) Meetings: 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the CSR Committee met 02 (two) times. The meetings 
were held on April 24, 2023, and January 30, 2024. 

14. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this 
Report, which affects the financial position of the Company. 

15. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There is no change in nature of business of the Company during the year under review. 

16. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE: 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

However, an application for adjudication of penalties was filed by the Company on June 13, 2023 
with the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore (ROC) under section 454 of the Act for the violation of 
Section 203 of the Act committed by Embassy Office Ventures Private Limited (CIN: 
U45201KA2007PTC042777) which was amalgamated with the company. Subsequently, ROC 
passed the final order on September 11, 2023.   

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The requirements of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company, as it is a Private Limited Company. 

18. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control, commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its operations, to ensure all the assets are safeguarded and protected against 
loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are authorized, regarded and reported 
correctly. The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by 
management and procedures. Internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other 
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records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data, and for maintaining 
accountability of assets. 

19. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 
134(5) of the Act: 

i. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, 
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures, if any; 

ii. that such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been 
selected and applied consistently and judgement and estimates have been made that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

iii. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

v. that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively as at and during 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024; and 

vi. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

20. DETAILS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Company has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement 
internal financial controls across the organization and that such controls are adequate and are 
operating effectively. 

Annexure 2 to the Auditor's Report provides for the Auditor's opinion on the Internal Financial 
Controls of the Company. 

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency 
or inadequacy of such controls. 

21. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEBI CIRCULAR ON EASE OF DOING BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT 
OF CORPORATE BOND MARKETS – REVISION IN THE FRAMEWORK FOR FUND RAISING BY 
ISSUANCE OF DEBT SECURITIES BY LARGE CORPORATES (“CIRCULAR"): 

In terms of Regulation 50B of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 
2021 read with Chapter XII of the NCS Master Circular on Fund raising by issuance of debt securities 
by large corporates (“LCs”) dated August 10, 2021 as amended from time to time, the Company was 
identified as an LC in Financial Year (FY) 23-24, based on the erstwhile criteria as on March 31, 
2023 and was required to raise a minimum 25% of their incremental borrowings done during the FY 
2023-24, through issuance of debt securities over a contiguous block of three years from Financial 
Year FY 2023-24 onwards. 
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However, SEBI issued the Circular on October 19, 2023, revising the framework for fund raising by 
issuance of debt securities by LCs, applicable with effect from April 01, 2024. As per the revised 
framework, fresh block of three years from FY 2024-25 onwards has been provided to the LCs. The 
Circular further provides that the LCs shall endeavour to comply with the requirement of raising 25% 
of their incremental borrowings done during FY 2022, FY 2023 and FY 2024 respectively by way of 
issuance of debt securities till March 31, 2024. 

The following are the details of the incremental borrowings done during the FY 2023-24: 

1. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the start of FY 23-24 (Rs. In Million): INR 15,639.61
2. Outstanding Qualified Borrowings at the end of FY 23-24 (Rs. In Million): INR 20,287.30
3. Highest credit rating of the company: AAA Rated by CRISIL & CARE
4. Incremental borrowing done during FY 23-24 (qualified borrowing) (Rs. In Million): INR 4,770
5. Borrowings by way of issuance of debt securities during FY 23-24 (Rs. In Million): Nil*

As per the erstwhile criteria applicable upto March 31, 2024, the Company had a time period of upto 
FY 2025-26 for raising 25% of the incremental borrowings done in FY 23-24 through issuance of 
debt securities. 

22. AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors:

In terms of Section 139 of the Act S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP (ICAI Firm Registration No.:
101049W/E300004), Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting held in year 2022 for a period of five consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of the Thirtieth Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in year 2026.

Internal Auditors:

In terms of Section 138 of the Act and other applicable laws, the Board at its meeting held on April 24,
2023, had appointed KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the
Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2024.

Cost Auditors:

M/s. GSR & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 000069), were appointed as the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, at the meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Company held on April 24, 2023.

Secretarial Auditor:

In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules 2014 and all other applicable
provisions, if any (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being
in force), the Company at its meeting held on April 24, 2023 had appointed  M/s. RJSY & Associates,
Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No: P2016MH057200) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

The report of the Secretarial Auditor in the prescribed Form MR-3 is given at “Annexure III” to the
Board’s Report. The said Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations,
adverse remarks or disclaimers.
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23. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, was applicable to the Company and 
accordingly such accounts and records are maintained. 

24. ANNUAL RETURN OF THE COMPANY: 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the annual return has been placed 
on the website of the Company at https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/. 

25. DISCLOSURES UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has a Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy pursuant to the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
the Rules framed thereunder (the “POSH Act”). The Policy, as adopted by Embassy Office Parks 
Management Services Private Limited (acting as the Manager to Embassy Office Parks REIT, is 
applicable to the Company in the capacity of being its Special Purpose Vehicle. This Policy 
encompasses all employees, including permanent, contractual, temporary, and trainee staff. 

This Policy can be accessed on the website of Embassy REIT- 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/esg/governance-documents/. 

The Company has undertaken comprehensive internal measures, including the establishment of an 
internal grievance redressal mechanism, to ensure effective complaint management and to foster a 
positive work environment. Furthermore, during the year under review, no complaints or cases were 
filed or were pending resolution under the POSH Act. 

26. COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR 
DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITORS: 

The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 
do not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

However, the Secretarial Audit report contains a modified opinion stating that the Company has not 
intimated to stock exchange regarding the proceedings of EGM held on January 11, 2024 as required 
under Regulation 51(2) read with Part B of Schedule III of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Management is of the opinion that the non-intimation resulted from interpretational issues, as 
the resolution passed during the EGM did not relate to the Company’s performance or operations 
and had no impact on the share price. Consequently, it was determined that it was not necessary to 
inform the stock exchange about the proceedings. 

Nevertheless, the Company being dedicated towards ensuring the best standards of corporate 
governance and disclosures, has taken the above opinion into consideration and undertakes to 
comply with such requirements moving forward. 
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27. COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial 
Standards i.e., Secretarial Standard – 1 (Meetings of the Board of Directors) and Secretarial 
Standard – 2 (General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

28. REPORTING OF FRAUDS: 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the Company have 
not reported any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees as 
specified under Section 143(12) of the Act. 

29. APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016: 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any application nor are any proceedings 
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

30. DIFFERENCE IN THE AMOUNT OF VALUATION WHILE OBTAINING LOAN FROM BANKS OR 
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: 

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any one-time settlement 
scheme with the banks or financial institutions. Hence, the disclosure required to be made pertaining 
to the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement 
and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the 
reasons thereof is not applicable.  

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

We thank our Investors, Bankers, Financial Institutions, various State and Central Government 
authorities and Stakeholders for their continued support during the year. We place on record our 
appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all levels. Our consistent growth was 
made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

 
 

 
  Sd/- Sd/- 
Jitendra Virwani    Aravind Maiya 
Nominee Director      Nominee Director 
DIN: 00027674    DIN: 08481898 
 
Place: Bengaluru                                        Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 23, 2024   Date: April 23, 2024 
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Annexure - I 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in subsection (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis- 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024, which were not at arm’s length basis. 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis- 

All the transactions entered with Related Parties for the period under review were on arm’s length basis 
and in ordinary course of business. The details of the related party transactions are set out in the notes 
to the Financial Statements. Since these transactions are in the ordinary course of business and are at 
arm’s length basis, approval of the Board is not mandatory. However, as a matter of abundant caution, 
approval of the Board has been obtained from time to time. 

Further, no material contracts or arrangements or transactions referred to in subsection (1) of Section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, were entered by the Company with any Related Party, during the 
period under review. 

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

 
 

 
        Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

Jitendra Virwani    Aravind Maiya 
Nominee Director      Nominee Director 
DIN: 00027674   DIN: 08481898 
 
Place: Bengaluru                              Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 23, 2024   Date: April 23, 2024 
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Annexure – II 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014] 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The Board has adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”). The brief salient features 
of the CSR Policy of the Company is to- 

(i) Outline projects, programs and activities to be undertaken by the Company;  

(ii) Specify the modalities of execution of such projects, programs and activities;  

(iii) Monitor the process to be followed for such projects, programs and activities;  

(iv) Directly or indirectly take up programs that benefit the communities in and around its work 
centers and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life and economic well-
being of the local populace; and  

(v) Generate community goodwill for the Company and help reinforce a positive and socially 
responsible image, through our CSR Activities. 

The Company is committed to economic, environmental and social well-being of communities and 
would consider participating in appropriate CSR initiatives in the coming year(s).   

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. No. Name of Director Designation 
/ Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

 
 

 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
attended 
during the 
year 

1. Mr. Raghu Sapra Member 2 2 

2. Mr. Jitendra Mohandas 
Virwani 

Member 2 1 

3. Mr. Vikaash Khdloya (1) Member 2 1 

4. Mr. Aravind Maiya (2) Member 2 1 

 
(1) Mr. Vikaash Khdloya ceased to be a member of the Committee due to his resignation effective 

April 27, 2023. 

(2) Mr. Aravind Maiya was appointed as a member of the Committee effective April 28, 2023. 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: 
https://www.embassyofficeparks.com/vtpl/ 
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried 
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable 

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.: ₹15,07,40,919 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.: 
₹30,14,818/- 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: 
Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.: Nil 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].: ₹30,14,818/- 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project).: 
₹30,14,818/- 

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: ₹30,14,818/- 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:  

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to section 135(5) 

 Amount Date of transfer Name 
of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

30,14,818/- NA NA NA NA NA 

 
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:  
S. 
No. 

Particulars Amount 

(in Rs.) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section 
of section 135 

₹30,14,818/- 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ₹30,14,818/- 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes activities of the 
previous Financial Years, if any 

Nil 
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(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii-iv)] Nil 

  
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:  

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year(s) 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under sub-
section (6) 
(in Rs.) 

Balance 
Amount 
in 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub-
section 
(6) of 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.) 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund as 
specified under 
Schedule VII as 
per second 
proviso to sub-
section (5) of 
section 135, if 
any 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding 
financial 
years (in 
Rs.) 

Deficiency, 
if any 

     Name 
of the 
fund 

Date of 
transfer. 

  

         

 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: No 

 
If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA 

 
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social 
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: NA 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Short 
particulars 
of the 
property or 
asset(s) 
[including 
complete 
address 
and 
location of 
the 
property] 

Pincode 
of the 
property 
or 
asset(s) 

Date of 
creation 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 
the registered owner 

     CSR 
Registration 

Name Registered 
address 
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Number, if 
applicable 

- - -- - - - - - 

        

 
9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 

section 135(5):  Not Applicable 
 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited 

 

 

Sd/- Sd/- 
Jitendra Virwani     Aravind Maiya 
Nominee Director       Nominee Director 
DIN: 00027674     DIN: 08481898 
 
Place: Bengaluru                                      Place: Bengaluru 
Date: April 23, 2024    Date: April 23, 2024 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED the Company . 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(2) 

(3) e 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings (to the extent applicable); 

(4) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye- Laws framed there under;

(5) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014;

(6) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
and

(7) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021

Annexure III
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(8) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 were not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; 

 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; 
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;  
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018; and 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(9) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the 
management, that is to say: 
 
(a) The Karnataka Land Revenue Act, 1964; 
(b) The Registration Act, 1908; 
(c) The Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Act, 1966 

(10) Other laws to the extent applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the 
Company; 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued pursuant to section 118 (10) of the Act, by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 
 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with The Bombay Stock Exchange.  

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above except that intimation is not given to stock exchange w.r.t. 
proceedings of EGM held on 11.01.2024 as required under Regulation 51(2) read with Part B of Schedule 
III of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. ( )  
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The Company is of the view that Regulation 51(2) of the SEBI LODR requires a listed entity to promptly 

price sensitive. 

performance or operations, nor was it price sensitive, the Company deemed it unnecessary to inform the 
stock exchange about the EGM proceedings. 

We further report that 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate Notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting, to 
the extent practicable. 

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board 
were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period: 

(1) The Company had earlier filed compounding application on June 12, 2023 before the Registrar of 
Companies, Karnataka, regarding non-compliance committed by Embassy Office Ventures Private 
Limited (CIN: U45201 KA2007PTC042777) which was amalgamated with this Company viz. 
Vikas Telecom Private Limited, for non- appointment of whole-time company secretary i.e. 
violation of section 203 of the Act. Accordingly, compounding fees of Rs. 5,00,000/- was imposed 
on the Company and Rs. 5,00,000/- each was imposed on the Directors of EOVPL namely, Mr. 
Vikaash Khdloya, Mr. Vikram Garg, Mr. Pradeep Nenumal Lala and Mr. Gopinath Ambadithody. 
The same was duly paid by both the Company and the Directors of EOVPL. 
 
The final compounding order was passed by the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka and the 
Company has duly filed the same with the Registrar of Companies. 
 

(2) The Company altered its Articles of Association vide special resolution of the members of the 
Company dated September 30, 2023, to incorporate certain clauses in order to comply with 
Regulation 23(6) read with Regulation 2(1)(s) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021. The alteration was effected in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules 
thereunder.  
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The revised Articles of Association of the Company has been duly filed with the Registrar of 
Companies.

(3) The Company has provided securities in connection with rupee term loan availed by the Company 
Quadron

discounting facility in aggregate not exceeding Rs. 450,00,00,000/- (Rupees four Hundred and Fifty 
Crore only). Special resolution of the members of the Company dated January 11, 2024 was passed 
for approving the same. The Directors were interested in the said transaction being common 
Directors in Quadron and the Company, and the Company has accordingly complied with the 
provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

  

 For RJSY & ASSOCIATES  
Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200 

  

  

 Sadhana Ramnihoar Yadav 
Membership No.: A27559 

Certificate of Practice No.: 16932 
 

Place: Mumbai ICSI UDIN: A027559F000214240 

Date: April 23, 2024  Peer Review Number: 3117/2023 

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which his annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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To, 
The Members,
VIKAS TELECOM PRIVATE LIMITED 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

 

(1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

(2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company. 

(4) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

(5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

(6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

  

 For RJSY & ASSOCIATES  
Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200 

  

  

 Sadhana Ramnihoar Yadav 
Membership No.: A27559 

Certificate of Practice No.: 16932 
 

Place: Mumbai ICSI UDIN: A027559F000214240 

Date: April 23, 2024  Peer Review Number: 3117/2023 
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